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MOISELLE

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$486
million and profit attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$79 million for the year ended 31 March
2011. Gross margin slightly increased to 81.4%, compared to
80.5% in last year. Moreover, operating margin significantly

increased to 18.0%, compared to 13.2% in last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The management had focused at broaden the customer base of
both house brands and the European brands when they
penetrated into the greater China market. The Group continued
to explore the fashion accessories market by operating retail
outlets for accessories brands COCCINELLE and SEQUOIA in the
mainland China during the year. The Group had carried out
jointly controlled entity with the SEQUOIA brand owner to
operate the retail outlet of the brand in Hong Kong. Other than
accessories market, the Group also continued to increase brand
image of the main apparel brand MOISELLE by allocating

increased resources in marketing and image built up.

During the fiscal year of 2011, the Group had increased stores
in Nanjing, Chongqing and Hefei, China. By continuing to
restructure the sales network in China, the Group aimed at
extending its sales network in the mainland China market and
utilizing the most effective and efficient channels to serve its
target customers. The sales network in Taiwan was expanded as

well as the Singapore market was explored during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

To increase brand equity and explore new markets of both house
brands and European brands had been the primary business
strategy of the Group. The Group had managed to improve
efficiency of resources throughout the manufacturing and
operating processes. Increased resources had been allocated to
design and development as well as retail operations functions for

research and development and talent training.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to formulate focused strategies to
increase its competitive edge and improve the market potential
of its products. Refreshed images and new styling for MOISELLE
brand products will be launched and target at both existing and
potential customers. The Group also continues to raise the
customer service standards so that customers can enjoy the

valuable shopping experience in the Group’s retail outlets.

New MOISELLE store in Macau and new MOISELLE stores in
Taiwan have been opened after the year end, representing the
Group’s expansion in these markets. The European brand,

COCCINELLE, will also open new store in Macau later this year.

The Group will also take the growth in economy in mainland
China as future focus in business development. Despite the
economic fluctuations in the short term, the long term
development of the China economy is considered contributory
to positive returns to the Group’s brand investments. The Group
is going to expand its sales network in more cities so as to

achieve increased market penetration in the country.

The Group will continue to enhance the brand equity under the
multiple brand strategy. In addition, the Group will keep on
refining the brand images of each brand under the Group. The
Group will also allocate resources in developing overseas

markets in order to gain more potential customers in future.

MOISELLE
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= APPRECIATION

RANERRESSUHMERRREBHMY EEE On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
REIZENRAAEBEFEHZEREH REE shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
v RERHAEECEEREFRAEEREH X and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
o most importantly our prestigious customers for their continuous

support during the year.

FE Chan Yum Kit
B8R AR Chairman
F8 “E-——FxA=++tH Hong Kong, 27 June 2011

MOISELLE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 15 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 2 imaroon (2010: 15 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 5 imaroon) retail outlets as at 31 March 2011.
The three brands were separately managed with each having its
own distinctive target customers. The design teams for each
brands worked out their own collections and image stories from
different creative sources of fashion trends. The Group’s retail
operations, however, were managed to pursuit for objectives in

the most effective and efficient manner.

Two (2010: two) stores of MOISELLE were maintained during the
year in Macau. With the increased tourists traveling to and
expatriates staying in Macau, the demand of prestigious fashion
products is expected to grow and the Group will continue to
introduce more attractive and valuable fashion apparel and

accessories products into the market.

At 31 March 2011, the Group operated in Taiwan market 11
MOISELLE stores (2010: 9) and 5 mademoiselle stores (2010: 5)
in Taipei, Taoyuan, Hsinchu, Taichung, Kaohsiung, Chiayi and
Tainan. With the expanded sales network in Taiwan, the Group
had managed to penetrate the Group’s brands into various

districts in Taiwan during the year.

In the mainland China, the Group maintained its sales network
under the three house brands, MOISELLE, mademoiselle and
imaroon. There were 61 MOISELLE stores (2010: 60) operating in
the mainland China as at 31 March 2011. 41 (2010: 41) out of
the 61 (2010: 60) stores were operated as consignment counters
in the department stores and 15 (2010: 13) were retail shops.
The remaining ones were operated by franchisees. The sales
network of the brands mademoiselle and imaroon was further
adjusted in the mainland China region during the year. There
were 9 (2010: 12) mademoiselle stores and one (2010: 6)
imaroon store operating as at 31 March 2011. The continued
adjustment in sales network aimed at capturing the most suitable
locations in the competitive market and diverse cities in China.
The multi-brand strategies had kept bringing competitive edge
and synergy effects on the brand building and increase potential

in the China fashion retail market.

MOISELLE
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The established network in the market in the mainland China
region continued to provide future growth opportunities to the
Group and to increase the brand exposure in the major and
second-tier cities. Under the implementation of integrated
marketing and visual merchandising strategies, activities in both
Hong Kong and China regions had delivered and strengthened
refreshed brand image and new look design concepts for
products of MOISELLE during the year.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group operates one (2010: two) retail
outlet of European brand COCCINELLE, an ltalian fashion
accessories brand, at Times Square shopping mall in Hong Kong.
The retail outlet of SEQUOIA, a French fashion accessories
brand, was maintained at the K11 shopping mall during the year
which was operated by the jointly controlled entity of the
Group. In the mainland China, one new COCCINELLE and one
new SEQUOIA stores were opened in the MIXC shopping mall,
Hangzhou by the Group during the year.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group maintained two (2010: one)
REISS stores, a UK high street fashion brand, in the mainland
China in the MIXC shopping mall, Hangzhou and Sanlitun,
Beijing. Besides, the Group maintained one (2010: three) retail

outlet of REISS at the Elements shopping mall, Hong Kong.

By establishing retail outlets in the shopping districts with high
pedestrian flows, in addition to strategically launched marketing
campaigns, the Group successfully expanded the brand mix and
increased the brand equity of the brands under the Group. The
broadened customer base also contributed to the increase in the
brand awareness of both the house brands and the European

brands operated by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover increased by approximately 11% to
approximately HK$486,088,000 (2010: HK$439,599,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2011 as compared with 2010. As the
established sales network in the mainland China, Macau and
Taiwan had generated improved performance, the revenue of the
region outside Hong Kong increased by approximately 15% to
approximately HK$246,765,000 (2010: HK$214,779,000) during
the year under review. The relatively stable markets outside
Hong Kong had increased the segment turnover ratio from
approximately 49% of 2010 to approximately 51% for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment increased by
approximately 6% to approximately HK$239,323,000 (2010:
HK$224,820,000) which was mainly due to the recovery of
retail market in Hong Kong after the improvement in economy

during the financial year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 81%, as compared to the same
approximately 81% of the previous year. The gross profit margin
was maintained due to the sustained brand image which could
demand higher premium on the products sold during the year.
Operating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2011 totaled
approximately HK$312,328,000, compared to approximately
HK$297,230,000 for 2010, increased by approximately 5%. The
overall operational efficiency was increased and the operating
margin became 18% (2010: 13%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 was approximately
HK$78,558,000 (2010 (restated): HK$54,395,000), increased by
approximately HK$24,163,000, 44%. The increase was mainly
the result of the increase in turnover and the effective

management of operating expenses.

MOISELLE
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$171 million (2010: HK$170 million). As at 31
March 2011, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$48 million (2010: HK$68
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$15
million (2010: HK$7 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2011, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 4.2 times (2010: 4.6 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2010:

zero).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$15 million (2010: HK$7 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company has also
issued a single guarantee to a supplier against obligations or
sums payable for goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2011, such obligations amounted to
HK$3 million (2010: HK$3 million).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group employed 1,023 (2010: 1,108)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries of
employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover, training programmes, a share option scheme

and a share award scheme.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 52, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 34
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr.
Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He has been a
member of the DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel under
Create Hong Kong since June 2009. He is the husband of Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun
and Mr. Chan Pak Hei. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 52, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 34 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr.
Chan Pak Hei. Ms. Tsui is the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

MOISELLE
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Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 60, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 34 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 33, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 51, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 23
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors” Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 22 years’ experience in property
investment and management. Ms. Yu was appointed as China-
appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as
notary public in December 2009.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the chief executive officer of Merkur Holdings Ltd. He
has 20 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.
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Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 57, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the chief of finance operations and systems
development of Hospital Authority. She has more than 34 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors. Ms.
Wong is a member of the Certified Management Accountants
Society of British Columbia in Canada and holds a bachelor’s

degree in commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, lke, aged 48, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
over 24 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 41, is the chief operating officer of
the Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 20 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &

Administrators of the United Kingdom.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 23, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. Mr. Chan Pak Hei
holds a bachelor of arts degree in fashion management (fashion
retail) from University of Arts London. He is the son of Mr.
Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2011. The only
exception is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board
of directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.
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During the year ended 31 March 2011, four board meetings

were held. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

H AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 4/4
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 4/4

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2011 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, one remuneration
committee meeting was held. The attendance of each committee

member is set out as follows:

o FE R 8
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 11
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 1/1

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration and the terms of
employment of the directors. During the year, the remuneration
committee has approved the non-executive director’s

appointment.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the independent

auditors, KPMG, are analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
BET R Audit services 1,383,000
IEE IR Non-audit services 374,000
1,757,000

ERESE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu
Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports
to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, two audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

i FE AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1/2
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 2/2

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the
nature and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in

relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and
evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the directors were
dedicated to implement various initiatives to further enhance the
existing internal control system alongside with the ongoing

business development of the group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group
regarding their responsibilities on the financial statements is set

out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 30 and 31.
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 12 to the

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

At no time during the year have the director, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 32 to 146.
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

group for each of the last five financial years is set out in pages
147 and 148.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$78,558,000 (2010 (restated): HK$54,395,000) has been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of Hong Kong 4 cents per share (2010:
Hong Kong 2 cents per share) was paid on 13 January 2011. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Hong Kong 13 cents per share (2010: Hong Kong 10 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
25 August 2011.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2011 are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 24(c)

to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000.
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Report of the Directors

RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with

such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme, deposited into
individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. The subsidiary and the employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension

payments or post-retirement benefits beyond their contributions.

MOISELLE
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the year ended 31 March 2011 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian and Mr.
Chu Chun Kit, Sidney will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with article 87 of the company’s
articles of association and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

BEME

Nature of interest

BREAAR K E
Mr. Chan Yum Kit

BIELL
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

ERRLL
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

REELRL
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

DR R (HE(1)E(2)

190,872,000 Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))
DA RIEBEFT)R2)

190,872,000 Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))
LEPN

30,000 Personal

5PN

100,000 Personal

MOISELLE



Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e R AR AR A W

WO E

Report of the Directors

EERFIETHRAERES ARAROKES
ZEBER KR (B)

Bt -

(1) 190,000,000/ #% % IR 10 J B Super Result
Consultants Limited (I Super Result]) 8 °
Super ResultZ RATIHRBRRASLE (TREED
#OEZ: ((Hhat ) REBEEBEESHERE
B46.7% ~ 46.7%86.6% c REERRLZTE I
# & 3 R B M Super Resultfi#F8 2190,000,000
BRRD P EE R RESR -

872,00088 % % B 12 J5 ENew First Investments
Limited (T New First]) 38 ° New FirstZ 4T3
HREERBRLZLIDHNERER0% REER
BREZTEHRBEEHERE B R New FirstfiisE 2
872,000 R 10 P EEE DA MBS o

2 HRREERBLZIARE RRLEIEERRA
BFEERZBROT  MELBRRAEEREE
o 2R e

o —ESRETHEARUEEREAARS
BEASABFEBRRERN - ETESTERESR
BREBELER®D  ZFROER LI THARE
BREREMRRAGBEESRHERSIRESLS A
EAMBEAR 2D IKRSER ZER -

ARABDESDREAATD 2BREFHERER
B AREBEHEHRT X BRENE]—6-

LS RZZE——F=A=+—H0 KAH
ANESRFETHAESRESEBEZHEALH
ENRAAAREEMHEE LR (EXREFREBE
RBIEXVER) 2D - HEROIESFS  #ER
AARBEELFRBEGROIEINR2BEEFTEZE
MR RERBEETFAMNERAARER
IR KA -

MOISELLE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed to be interested in the 190,000,000 shares

held by Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed to be interested
in the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed to be interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui will
be deemed to be interested in as family interest and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

The directors of the company have been granted options under
the company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out

in the section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2011, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the company to grant
options to selected participants as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the group. The Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are authorised,
at their discretion, to offer full-time employees, executives or
officers, including the directors of the company or any of its
subsidiaries or any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers
who will or have contributed to the group, options to subscribe
for such number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance of
the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the company by

way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event such period
shall not exceed ten years commencing on the date on which

the option is granted.
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BRESTE (EF)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme may not exceed 28,000,000
shares, representing 9.92% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of this report. The number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme can be increased up to
30% of the shares of the company in issue from time to time,

subject to the approval of the company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed 1% of the shares of
the company in issue as at the date of grant, without prior

approval from the company’s shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed both 0.1% of the
company’s share capital and a value of HK$5 million as at the
date of grant, without prior approval from the company’s

shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the company had granted options to
certain directors and employees of the company and other
participants to subscribe for shares of the company. A summary
of the movements of the outstanding share options during the

year ended 31 March 2011 is set out below.
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BRESE (&) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
BRERE
T A
Number of share options sk -
Market value iR RER
EREAN/  RZE--E &R pershare 2 ERHE
H-g-%8F i ZAIt-R (BE immediately  Market value
MA-B&E&  EmERE  EAEAR Lapsed/ g8  Buercse beforethe ~per share
RERAL Balance as at Granted xercised anceled  Balanceasat  price RiiAg fE8E  daeofgrant  on evercise
Eligible person TAprl 2010 during the year ~ during the year  during the year 31 March 2011 pershare  Date of grant Exercisable period of options~ of options
o (B/B/%) (8/8/%) k1 £
HKS  (DDIMM/YYYY) (DDMMAYYY) HKS HKS
£z
Directors
it
Mr. Chan 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 115 2412002 23/412002 to 11412012 1.14 -
fat
M. Tsui 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 115 42002 23/412002 to 1/412012 114 -
HER
Chui Hing Yee 500,000 - - - 500,000 115 /412002 23/412002 to 1/412012 1.14 -
RER
Chan Sze Chun 900,000 - - - 900,000 115 2412002 23/412002 to 1/412012 114 -
418
Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 100,000 - (100,000) - - 115 2412002 23/412002 to 1/412012 1.14 240
FRLEEE:
Suppliers of 200,000 - - - 200,000 115 412002 23/412002 to 1142012 1.14 -
services in
aggregale
5,900,000 - (0000 S S0

FHECEHERECSTER BN N ERE
MEEET (m)(ii) °

BRETHESN AT HERAE - WELQBRE
AMBLAAREBE-_ZE——F=A=1t—-HLEFE
MEESEM-FMEEENZE  RELAQT 2
ESFRFETHAEHIFE2BEBIRB+NEZ
FLAERBARRAREAEMEABR 2RO K
& 2 B BRI 25 o

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted is

provided in note 1(m)(ii) to the financial statements.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2011 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.
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RARRAZEEE R

RZZB-——5=ZA=1t—H BRAQAREEF
K ERPEBMR 2 REFE 2B RMATRE
BRAQRRAEERERITHRAEZI  UTRRRA
RARDHEERG T EEEARER SR BERS
EXVHBASADF 2 EERKE

REREME

Name of shareholder

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2011, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

BRGNS BT

ligried ¥ SN=lid

HRROEH Approximate percentage of
Aggregate long aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

BfEE © Super ResultZ RANTIHRMBR A ~ REL L RBE
BAREDERIEEL6.7%  46.7%86.6% ©

BRERER EX[ESREIBTHRAERES 28
wmRIBRESE IMBABARANESREET
BABZERI  BERADAREBERZRPERA
BB REFE2ERLMARE R2F——
FZA=1+—H  BEHMALRA2FRD A
EROTEBEDILR

BEERaNzESE

RERSIFAFEEMAEH BFAQE HERD
8 MWERARRNERMBRRES—F AT ZE
AEESNY  AORESHEREETMAEAES -

MOISELLE

190,000,000 67.34% (K1&E) (Note)

Note:The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
sections “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
and “Share option scheme” above, no person was recorded in
the register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest or a short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the company as at 31 March 2011.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which a director of the company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 32 to 146,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2011, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2011 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
HE-Z——F=F=1+—HI4FE GAEIR) For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B-—F —E-FF
2011 2010
B £ Fr Fr
Note $/000 $000
(E31)
(Restated)
ES Turnover 3 486,088 439,599
HEMA Cost of sales (90,220) (85,549)
ER Gross profit 395,868 354,050
H g A Other revenue 4 3,235 1,986
Hiol s/ (&18) FH Other net income/(loss) 4 873 (800)
SHER DA Selling and distribution costs (247,820) (239,260)
THRAMBEER Administrative and other operating expenses (64,508) (57,970)
R Profit from operations 87,648 58,006
A& B AR Finance costs 5(a) (1) 3)
THIEE 2 fhERE : Valuation gains on 13
— LT REEY — land and buildings - 949
—-REME — investment properties 5,000 4,400
BLEE AR ZEE Share of losses of a jointly controlled entity (179) (90)
BR B A 72 A Profit before taxation 5 92,468 63,262
PGt Income tax 6(a) (13,910) (8,867)
FRRF Profit for the year 78,558 54,395
] PN=; S Attributable to:
NA AR R Equity shareholders of the company 9 78,558 54,395
BREF Earnings per share 11
=N Basic $0.287T $0.197T
#F Diluted $0.287T $0.197C
FHNEV4ECMEB AT BHRK 2 -8 - B The notes on pages 41 to 146 form part of these financial
RATIERREELEERNSFZEAREEERRN statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
HizE24(b) ° of the company attributable to the profit for the year are set out
in note 24(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE-Z——F=F=+—HI45E GAEHIR) For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—fF “E-FF
2011 2010
Y =E Fr Fr
Note $/000 $000
(E35)
(Restated)
5 R 3 A Profit for the year 78,558 54,395
FREMEEKE Other comprehensive income
(MprHiE) for the year (after tax) 10
BEBRBIRINE QR Exchange differences on translation
MBHRRkZER 5 of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 10,694 514
FEEBRLREEY 2 Surplus on revaluation of land and
EfhBEER buildings held for own use 71,544 48,090
82,238 48,604
FREENZEAE Total comprehensive income for the year 160,796 102,999
TH ARG : Attributable to:
ANA )RR Equity shareholders of the company 160,796 102,999

FNEV4EZHEBAYBIRET 2 —

37|
A

B

AN

7

o

The notes on pages 41 to 146 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-Z——F=A=+—8 (LAB%5I7R) At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

= 225 —EENF
=B=+-H =B=+-H A—H
31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2009
B = r Fr T Fr T T
Note $000  $'000  $'000  $000  $'000  $000
(E751) (E%))
(Restated) (Restated)
ERBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
- RENFE - Investment properties 13 25,220 20,220 15,820
~-HithEEEE — Other fixed assets 13 343,506 247,752 199,036
368,726 267,972 214,856
REEDNT 2% Interest in a jointly
controlled entity 15 - 326 -
HthEE Other assets 16 50,096 12,929 14,226
EEMEHEE Deferred tax assets 23(b) 6,793 5,258 3,002
425,615 286,485 232,084
REEE Current assets
BE Inventories 17 63,193 55,597 73,349
FEWEBR TN K EL UL Trade and other receivables 18 49,349 49,480 47,185
A %ERE Tax recoverable 23(a) 334 2 -
BERBITER Cash and bank deposits 19(a) 170,661 170,140 100,432
283,537 275,219 220,966
RBEE Current liabilities
FEAERREMEMNK  Trade and other payables 20 57,121 53,197 49,507
A NETRE Tax payable 23(a) 9,921 6,393 4,194
67,042 59,590 53,701
REBEEFE Net current assets 216,495 215,629 167,265
BERARBEELEE Total assets less current
liabilities 642,110 502,114 399,349
*¥RBEE Non-current liabilities
EEMEHERE Deferred tax liabilities 23(b) 43,471 24,898 13,851
EEFE NET ASSETS 598,639 477,216 385,498

MOISELLE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

WZT——F=A=+—0 (LLUBKF|’R) At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

= = —EENF
=A=+-H =B=1+—H A—H
31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2009
B = Tr r Fr Fr T Fr
Note $000  $'000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
(E71) (Z51)
(Restated) (Restated)
EXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AN Share capital 24(c) 2,822 2,821 2,821
i Reserves 595,817 474,395 382,677
R RER TOTAL EQUITY 598,639 477,216 385,498

EEER=F——FAAST L AR AR -

FHNZET46B ZHFB AT HEIREK 2 — B

Chan Yum Kit

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2011.

EZE Directors
RI5E
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

—_ — — — —

2 o The notes on pages 41 to 146 form part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet

R-Z——F=A=+—8 (LAB%5I7R) At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
Mt = T T T T
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
FRBEE Non-current assets
NN NG A Interest in subsidiaries 14 224,024 253,466
RBEE Current assets
EWEER R M EUWE Trade and other receivables 18 60,117 10,109
RERBITEX Cash and bank deposits 19(a) 963 896
61,080 11,005
nREEE Current liabilities
FEfTBR A R EftE(F X Trade and other payables 20 2,330 2,069
REBEEFE Net current assets 58,750 8,936
EEFE NET ASSETS 282,774 262,402
EXRRE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24(a)
R A< Share capital 2,822 2,821
(] Reserves 279,952 259,581
B RER TOTAL EQUITY 282,774 262,402
ESEN-E——FAASTLHRELRFTRE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2011.
)
)
) EZE Directors
BRERAR ®IGE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
EAF146E 2B ABREIRET 2 — D o The notes on pages 41 to 146 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z——F=F=+—HI45E GAEHIR) For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1HR

BEN

EE  EMRE
BH#LR  Landand BRxR
Bx  RGEE EftHE EXRE Sttty buldng REER E#
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total

capital ~ premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve profits Equity
i3 n Tn Tn Tn n Tr Tn Tn
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000

R-SRNERA-RZER
ilELs

Balance at 1 April 2009
As previously reported 2,821 58,601 121 14,475 9,051 09,146 229739 383,954

REFHBRNAZMEL L Prior period adjustments arising
) EE from change in accounting policy 2 - - - - - - 154 154
BE) As restated 2,601 568,601 121 14,475 9,051 69,146 231283 385,498

ZB%h/-BECRERE:

Changes in equity for 2009/10:

) Profit for the year (restated) - - - - - - 54,395 54,395
A2 ENE Other comprehensive income 10 = = = 514 - 48,090 - 48604
PEUEEE Total comprehensive income - - - 514 - 48090 54395 102,999
FERREZRE Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 24(b)(ii) - - - - - - (5,641)  (5,641)
AEEEERZKE Dividend declared in respect

of the current year 24(b)(i) = - = = - - (5,640) (5,640)
REEEE Transfer between reserves = = = = 285 = (265) =

RZB-BEZA=t+-A2
L8 (EE))

Balance at 31 March 2010
(as restated) 2821 58,601 121 14989 9336 117236 74112 477216

MOISELLE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z——F=F=1+—HI5E GAE¥IR) For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

s )4
BEY
EE  ERRE
BHARE  landand
REx  RAEE HEE EXRE  Stautry buldng REER SRRESR
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve profis Equity
(i3 n Tn Tr Tn n Tr Tr r
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
RZE-SEMA-AzEH  Balanceat 1 April 2010
25K As previously reported 281 58,601 121 14989 9336 117,36 271,842 474,946
RefHRNURHELL Prior period adjustments arising
L from change in accounting policy 2 - - - - - - 200 2200
HEJ) As restated 2821 58,601 121 14989 9336 17236 274112 477,216
ZE-8F/--F2 Changes in equity for 2010/11:
Bi2g:
ERE Profit for the year - - - - - - 78558 78,35
B2 ERE Other comprehensive income 10 - - - 10,694 - 71544 - 8,38
PEREAE Total comprehensive income - - - 1069 - 71544 78558 160,796
REBREHARTZRE Shares issued under share
option scheme 24(c) 1 114 - - - - - 115
EFEHEZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 24(bjii) - - - - - - (28203 (28,203)
AEEBERZKE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (11,285 (11,285
RZB--£Zf Balance at 31 March 2011
St-RAeks 2822 58715 121 25683 9336 188780 313,182 598,639

FNZEV4EZHEBAUBRR 2 —HD -

MOISELLE

The notes on pages 41 to 146 form

statements.

part of these financial
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HEBRESHEE
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z——F=F=+—HI45E GAEHIR) For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——F “E-FF
2011 2010
o = T Fr T T
Note $/000 $/000 $7000 $000
RETEH Operating activities
REXKEEZHE  Cash generated from operations 19(b) 69,485 100,050
2 HE Tax paid
—ENEEBANE — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (2,778) (386)
— BB IIE - Overseas tax paid 9,514) (7,922)
RETBREZ Net cash generated from
BeFE operating activities 57,193 91,742
REED Investing activities
FHREE=EA#% Increase in deposits with
FH 2 RAT banks with maturity
FRIE N more than three months
when placed (10,713) (47,955)
BABEEEENH Payment for purchase of
fixed assets (22,833) (11,589)
HEBEEEFMBSRKIE Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 500 256
2 U F 2 Interest received 1,355 440
REZBRAZ Net cash used in investing
REFH activities (31,691) (58,848)

MOISELLE
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HAEBHESRER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z——F=F=1+—HI5E GAE¥IR) For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—F——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
it = Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note $/000 $/000 $000 $000
MEEE Financing activities
RIBERESTBIZ4T  Proceeds from shares issued
IR 13 Fi 1§ 7R 18 under share option scheme 115 =
EFE Interest paid (1) (3)
ENRE Dividends paid (39,488) (11,281)
MEZTBRAZ Net cash used in financing
REFHE activities (39,374) (11,284)
ReRREZEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash
CRA) /18 iE 58 and cash equivalents (13,872) 21,610
REEMB2HEEK  Cash and cash equivalents at
REEEY beginning of the year 122,185 100,432
EXSH & Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 1,315 143
REERZAEER Cash and cash equivalents
HEEEY at end of the year 19(a) 109,628 122,185
F4 B4 Z2MTFB AT KREK 2 —hD ° The notes on pages 41 to 146 form part of these financial

statements.

MOISELLE
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B B o M

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the group is

set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LAE®57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

TESHBER(E)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2011 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and

the group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(e)); and

- other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(f) and 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.
In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in a

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(h)).

MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAE®57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. TESTHEEE)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the group or
company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the group or company
and one or more of the other parties share joint

control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
note 1(h)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.



Annual Report 2011
A 4

TEEHBER(E)

(d)

AM/’\_‘]( )
ﬁa$$l@ﬁé%“ﬁ2%ﬁﬁtﬁ
FEiafED - AIRNEENESHHES
2= ﬁﬂﬁ—*ﬁﬁ'ﬁ$$lﬁﬁﬁ
WERREEEERBBHE QARAIER
BREEN2EERD - BEBOME
¢Elhﬁ2Em%&E§%+§2&
EREE BEREELEREAEENEGE
@ﬂZhﬁ#EZE@%%EE°

AEEHEERNRAZERZMEEZR
mﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁhﬁmﬁﬁm
ZRES L RIKG - BRINAESREIEH
mmeﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁéi'ﬁﬁgiﬁ
BERSREERRAER

ERKEAETHEELNT 2 EHE R
ZAENRZENEREARIMELE -

HEY v BENBRRAER - F@RK

EERFEARERZAREZERURD
REEER  MZEBRREDDEEIY

BEEZAAEE WER - 85
B DB 2 REREAE o

ARRN

ERDNREERBERA  REEQRAIZR
ERBEANBREMBRESEAR (2Z
BEEE1(h)) °

B ok M

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the group’s net investment in the jointly controlled

entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its jointly
controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the group ceases to have joint control over a
jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate.
In the company’s balance sheet, investment in a

jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

MOISELLE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note 1(p)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(g)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
1(g).

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(g)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

Other fixed assets (continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not

reclassified to profit or loss.

MOISELLE
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1. TESTHEEE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
( HtEEEE (&) (f)  Other fixed assets (continued)
EEEEBRENTERERAERERE Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
FEET A A PR OP 8 H B AR = 4 B R 5T valuation of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
FerBEE(WA)  FAELEDT : residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- fUREELH EEEYREEZ -~ Buildings situated on leasehold land are
R H RS AR I AR (BIFE R depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
HHEGFETF) 2BEETER terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,
&= being 50 years from the date of completion.

- MHEWEEE TERZEEH (UREERE)

—  Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years and the period of the lease
- TEEBEREM +T&

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- BRAREEEE BEE+HF

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

- EBERBAEEME =R

- Computer and office equipment 3 to 5 years

- R”E BE

- Motor vehicles 5 years

EEEEEEAZTRIMNE TEER Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different

FHIR > HE ZRASHEETNEI G2 useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is

BIREEEESE - SEIMG D HTER allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and

E-EECAERAFHRAERNGER (W each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life

B)BSER - of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA7E ¥ %5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the group
Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified
as investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(e));

and
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Leased assets (continued)

()

Classification of assets leased to the group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(e)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and
- a significant or prolonged decline in

fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

MOISELLE



5 Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e R AR AR A W

W B e & B G
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAE®57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESEEEA) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(hy EEREGE) (h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) RAFBHFRERAMERSZHE (i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
(#) other receivables (continued)

MEERMESEEEFE B8R
WERBELIEUT HXER

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

- HARERMBARREEA
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~AE (RHE1d)  HESE
2 LR & 1] Y [ & 28 B4R ff o
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AREMREERRRE S
MEE  BEFERZEEE
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MOISELLE

For investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entity (including those recognised
using the equity method (see notel(d))), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 1(h)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note 1(h)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

MOISELLE
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the balance sheet date to identify
indications that fixed assets (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts) may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)(i) and

(if)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1(h)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(0)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

MOISELLE
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will

vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A8 ¥ %5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Share-based payment (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Income tax

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that

they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(e), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits

will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the company or the group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously;

or

MOISELLE
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1. TESTHEEE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) FREH (&) (n) Income tax (continued)
(iv) (#& (iv) (continued)
- EZEMBSHREENERFE: S — in the case of deferred tax assets and
EEMEBEHAER —H K liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
BB AT EP BB AE levied by the same taxation authority on
HER: either:
- [E—EHER N —  the same taxable entity; or
- TENEHRER ELE - different taxable entities, which, in
EtEERREEENE each future period in which significant
REELEFMSHABEE amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
BEIKRBELEMEHRE assets are expected to be settled or
EfWEHNEHER - & recovered, intend to realise the current
REAEEEBRAIMEH tax assets and settle the current tax
EEMEEBAHAEHA liabilities on a net basis or realise and
& HEFSRZEEM settle simultaneously.

AEZEE-

(0) Ptz BER EERIETEE (0) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
(i)  FFEM .z B BIER (i) Financial guarantees issued
B ERIDERBEITA (BIERAN) Financial guarantees are contracts that require
RERZEAN(HEA) BFERS the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
BHARBERBEGEE T ENERRNE payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
HENRMEZNEEL  MAFE guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
AZRNBERENER ° incurs because a specified debtor fails to make

payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(1)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(o)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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1. EESTBEK (&) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) FIBtHzBBER ERRIFEE (H) (o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i) RMEFERXEER

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities
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Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.

MOISELLE
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

()

(i)

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(ii)  (continued)
The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation outside
Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the group if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the group or exercise significant influence over
the group in making financial and operating

policy decisions, or has joint control over the

group;

the group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint

venture in which the group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is
an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
group or of any entity that is a related party of
the group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(®

Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with
the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the group’s financial

statements:

— HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

- Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

— HK(IFRIC) 17, Distribution of non-cash assets to

owners

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period, except for the amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes, in respect of the recognition of deferred tax
on investment properties carried at fair value under HKAS
40, Investment property. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as
permitted by the amendments, the group has decided to

early adopt the amendments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes

The change in policy arising from the amendments to
HKAS 12 is the only change which has had a material
impact on the current and comparative periods. As a
result of this change in policy, the group now
measures any deferred tax liability in respect of its
investment properties with reference to the tax liability
that would arise if the investment properties were
disposed of at their carrying amounts at the balance
sheet date. Previously, where these investment
properties were held under leasehold interests,
deferred tax was generally measured using the tax rate
that would apply as a result of recovery of the asset’s

value through use.

This change in policy has been applied retrospectively
by restating the opening balances at 1 April 2009 and
2010, with consequential adjustments to comparatives
for the year ended 31 March 2010. As the group’s
properties are located in Hong Kong, this has resulted
in a reduction in the amount of deferred tax provided

on valuation gains as follows:

MOISELLE
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2. DITBEZ®H (&) 2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@ REXAEBEFEAF12R[FEH] (@) Early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12,
ZAEET (&) Income taxes (continued)
RE(E#EER
R E125
A28
Effect of
A 2 2% adoption of
As previously  amendments to ER]]
reported HKAS 12 As restated
T Tr T
$"000 $"000 $"000

BZ-Z—-ZHF=H=1+—H Consolidated income statement

LEEZGREBRER for the year ended 31 March 2010
EEE Income tax expense 9,593 (726) 8,867
FR@F Profit for the year 53,669 726 54,395
BREXRF Basic earnings per share $0.197¢ - $0.197¢
SREEEA Diluted earnings per share $0.197T - $0.197C

R-E-ZF=A=+—H Consolidated balance sheet as

ZEBRBEEER at 31 March 2010
EEFBEE Deferred tax liabilities 27,168 (2,270) 24,898
RERF Retained profits 271,842 2,270 274,112
R-ZZBEZAENAE—H Consolidated balance sheet as

ZREEERER at 1 April 2009
EEFEEE Deferred tax liabilities 15,395 (1,544) 13,851
R & & A Retained profits 229,739 1,544 231,283

MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Other changes in accounting policies as a result of
developments in HKFRSs

The other developments resulted in changes in
accounting policy but none of these changes in policy
have a material impact on the current or comparative

periods, for the following reasons:

- The impact of the majority of the revisions to
HKFRS 3, HKAS 27 and HK(IFRIC) 17 have not
yet had a material effect on the group’s financial
statements as these changes will first be effective
as and when the group enters into a relevant
transaction (for example, a business combination,
a disposal of a subsidiary or a non-cash
distribution) and there is no requirement to
restate the amounts recorded in respect of

previous such transactions.

—  The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in
respect of recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax
assets) and HKAS 27 (in respect of allocation of
losses to non-controlling interests in excess of
their equity interest) have had no material impact
as there is no requirement to restate amounts
recorded in previous periods and no such
deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current

period.

—  As a result of the amendment to HKFRS 8,

“Operating segments”, arising from the
“Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)” omnibus
standard, the measure of total assets for each
reportable segment is only required to be
presented if it is regularly provided to the group’s
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”).
Segment assets of the group are not reported to
the group’s CODM regularly. As a result,
reportable segment assets have not been

presented in these financial statements.

MOISELLE
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(A% 5)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. BXHR 3. TURNOVER
AEBETEXB AR Hig TERALE The principal activities of the group are the design,
BF =) AR B Kz EC & o manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and

accessories.

EXBRECEEMmBREZFE TEERE Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,
o WE HIBRMEME T o excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.
4. HtWAREAMEE - (FE) FHE 4. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSS)
—2--% C—B-ZF
2011 2010
Fr T
$/000 $000
H e A Other revenue
RITERZFEBA Interest income from bank deposits 1,676 440
REVEESRE Gross rental from investment properties 640 574
R 7% & W A Service fee income 600 420
HMEWA Sundry income 319 552
3,235 1,986
Hftwes / (B8R) 8 Other net income/(loss)
HEBEEEZWE (B518) F5  Net gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets 563 (578)
B X (F8)FHE Net exchange gain/(loss) 310 (222)
873 (800)

MOISELLE
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(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E-—fF —E-ZF
2011 2010
Fr T
$/000 $000
(a) RERA (@) Finance costs
RITERRHEMEE Interest on bank advances and
ZHE other borrowings 1 3
by BEIRN(TEEES (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
M (fat7)) remuneration (note 7))
REMFEMNRGE Contributions to defined contribution
2= retirement plan 5,956 5,370
e IERHEMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 81,176 76,845
87,132 82,215
(c) HtEH (c) Other items
ZEEE & Auditors’ remuneration
- R RBE — audit services 1,383 1,229
— HAb R — other services 374 143
nE Depreciation 19,534 21,153
EWERR ZRERES Impairment losses on trade debtors 302 -
BEEEZRERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 169 719
T REEY 2 EE Operating lease charges in respect of
HEEH land and buildings
—REHAEMNR — minimum lease payments 136,029 138,971
-gEH: — contingent rentals 14,083 10,269
&R EERS MR Rentals receivable from investment
E#EMX3,0007T properties less direct outgoings of
(ZE—FF :2.0007) $3,000 (2010: $2,000) (637) (572)
FEMA (FizZ170b) Cost of inventories* (note 17(b)) 90,220 85,549
: BFEERAH17,638,000C (ZF—F&F : ” Cost of inventories includes $17,638,000 (2010:
18,618,0007T) @ BIFEE T A4 TERK $18,618,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
HAEEE . SEEERDTALES A5 operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the

R EES (b)Y & MR L BB o

respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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6. MEBERFRZFEBH 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(@ HEBBRRFAIRZABHRS: (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—B-—F —E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
(E5)
(Restated)
THBE-FBFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 5,729 442
DEFERBTR Under-provision in respect of prior years 25 15
5,754 457
AEHE B Current tax — Overseas
REERE Provision for the year 9,550 10,048
EEFEH Deferred tax
ERMERECELARED Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (1,394) (1,632)
1t 22 4 Bp 31 IR AL B 7H Effect of changes in tax rate on
T deferred tax balances - (6)
(1,394) (1,638)
13,910 8,867

MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA78#5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2011 is
calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for the PRC
and overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax

jurisdictions.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income
tax laws, regulations and implementation guidance
notes, the statutory income tax rate applicable to the
group’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen changes from 15% to
25% progressively within five years from 1 January
2008 (2008: 18%; 2009: 20%; 2010: 22%; 2011:
24%; 2012: 25%). In addition, a subsidiary located in
Shenzhen is entitled to enjoy a tax relief of a full
reduction in the income tax rate for two years from 1
January 2007 and thereafter a 50% reduction in the

income tax rate for the following three years.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan and
Singapore are 17% (2010: 25%) and 17% (2010: 17%)

respectively.
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6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $8,514,000 (2010: $4,968,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.
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6. HEBBRIIRZFIBH (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

by BEXXHESHEZNRBEAREAEZ (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
R profit at applicable tax rates:

—2-—-F —E-2F

2011 2010

Fr Fr

$’000 $'000

(E31)

(Restated)

BR%E A e A Profit before taxation 92,468 63,262

BEMBREREREERS Notional tax on profit before taxation,

BN EARESE calculated at the rates applicable to

BREANER 2 BEHIE profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 19,134 14,820
ARz RBEHE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 293 810
BAFHIRA ZH B £ Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (831) (1,202)
Hh B Y /8 2 B P15 B S B P Tax effect of the income tax holiday of

ZRBEE a PRC subsidiary (7,958) (3,826)
W LAl R R E Rt Tax effect of recognition of temporary

ERBBEE differences not recognised previously (125) (1,160)
KREARBE R 2MBEEE > Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,

MBEAFECBHAEE net of utilisation during the year 3,467 (591)
ERMEEMEEARER Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax

EEREAZRBELE arising from temporary differences (95) 7
BEZBHHNROA—-B2 Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 April

EEBIAFZR 2 HE resulting from changes in tax rates = (6)
UEFEBRBTR Under-provision in respect of prior years 25 15
BRHELH Actual tax expense 13,910 8,867

MOISELLE
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7. BEE#ME 7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
REBEEB(RRAEOD FE161EIBzESHE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
wmE of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
M
BER
BNEA R
Salaries, ~ BERA eI
EZHE  allowances Dis-  Retirement
Directors’ and henefits  cretionary scheme 5
fees in kind bonuses ~ contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
“B--F 2011
HITEE Executive directors
RAR Chan Yum Kit - 5,877 = 12 5,889
#oR Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,794 - 12 3,806
#"EE Chui Hing Yee - 2,360 70 12 2,442
RB#% Chan Sze Chun - 949 60 12 1,021
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
REK Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
0 E:S Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,980 130 48 13,338
—2-%% 2010
HTEE Executive directors
REA Chan Yum Kit - 5,792 - 12 5,804
#RIE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,691 - 12 3,703
HRER Chui Hing Yee - 2,287 70 12 2,369
RE&K Chan Sze Chun - 983 60 12 1,055
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
REG Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
B Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,753 130 48 13,111

MOISELLE
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BEEME (&)

o ETESERBREUIBEAQXAR
e BER_E——F=ZA=+—HBESM
BERBEBREREARTEZEREZFFTEEHR
ExeREEIBRESE - -

e RURBYEINCEOESREHZEE
T REEY 2 HEBL2,5650007T (=ZF—
FF :2,165,0007T) °

EEMEAL

AMI(ZE-ZF AU HEeMEALH @
U(ZE—Z2F  NU) EE2MES R
EHHE - HBM (Z2—ZF  Wfz) At
ZEEREMT :

B e 3R B R
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, certain directors were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the company. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding in respect of each director
as at 31 March 2011 are set out under the section “Share

option scheme” of the report of the directors.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of $2,565,000 (2010: $2,165,000) which represents
the market rental value of own land and buildings provided

to directors.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the six (2010: six) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2010: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two (2010: two)

individuals are as follows:

—g--% -F-%f%

2011 2010

Fr FTr

$/000 $000

FeREMME Salaries and other emoluments 1,543 1,609
METEAL Discretionary bonuses 340 284
RN B Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
1,907 1,917

MOISELLE
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8. BEM& AL (E) 8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
ZM(ZZE—ZF Bu) MEeie AL 2 The emoluments of the two (2010: two) individuals with the
SETIHER : highest emoluments are within the following bands:
A"
Number of individuals
—E-—F —E-ZF
$ 2011 2010
£ —1,000,0007T Nil — 1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001t — 1,500,000 1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1 1
9. AATREZREELRF 9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF

AAREERRELGEESENEE—S285A
AABHERFKABE255,000 (ZFE—F
£ :1,150,00078) Z &8 o

BIAFERF 2 H ik -

THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the company includes a loss of $255,000 (2010:
$1,150,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s profit

for the year:

=F-——F —F-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
EFARRR B HRK 2 EH Amount of consolidated loss attributable
BRRELGREBIBEE to equity shareholders dealt with in
the company’s financial statements (255) (1,150
KE—BHEAR 2 RERE Final dividends from a subsidiary
BENBEMERFEZEF attributable to the profit of the
RAF B0 ROR A previous financial years, approved
and paid during the year 60,000 60,000
RRARRER 2GR (HE24(a) Company’s profit for the year (note 24(a)) 59,745 58,850

FREENRENFAARERRERE ZFE
BRI EE24(b) ©

MOISELLE

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity
shareholders of the company are set out in note 24(b).
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10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income

—B—-% —E-2F
2011 2010
8 BERX &8 S8 BBREX £
Before Before
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense  amount  amount  expense  amount
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
$000 $7000 $’000 $000 $000 $000
BEEBBEIMEAR  Exchange differences
MBRECESER on translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 10,694 - 10,694 514 - 514
BRLHREENZ Surplus on revaluation of
EMBE land and buildings held
for own use 89,976 (18,432) 71,544 58,519 (10,429 48,090
Hib2EKE Other comprehensive income 100,670  (18,432) 82,238 59,033  (10,429) 48,604

MOISELLE
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11. BRER

(@)

BREXRER

BRERBAIREBEARATEBER R
RIE/EERI#78,558,0008 (ZFE—FF
(E%l) : 54,395,0007) R ANFELD EIT

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the company of $78,558,000 (2010 (restated):

i@ IR hFE F 15 £0282,055,0008% (=&
—Z 4 :282,030,000R) 5TEMT :

$54,395,000) and the weighted average number of
282,055,000 (2010: 282,030,000) ordinary shares in

issue during the year, calculated as follows:

B AR 2 T E Weighted average number of ordinary shares
—g-—-F  -B-%%
2011 2010
000 "000
RENBTEBRRND Issued ordinary shares at beginning
of the year 282,030 282,030
TEBREZZE Effect of share options exercised
(KfiE24(c)) (note 24(c)) 25 -
REREBR 2 NREFITE Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at end of the year 282,055 282,030

MOISELLE
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1. 8RER 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
by BREFERF (b) Diluted earnings per share
BRBERADIBREBEAATEBERR The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
REWG=F%78,558,0007T (ZE—FF on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
(Z%l) : 54,395,0007T) & &8 AR N #E F shareholders of the company of $78,558,000 (2010
) 8284,423,00018 (=& —F F : (restated): $54,395,000) and the weighted average
282,030,0008%) 5T E M T : number of 284,423,000 (2010: 282,030,000) ordinary

shares calculated as follows:

BERZINEFIE (#5F) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
—E-—-fF —E-2F

2011 2010

¥ +

000 "000

R=ZA=+t—BEBREAR Weighted average number of

ordinary shares at 31 March 282,055 282,030
BEBBRBAAA 2 BRE Effect of deemed issue of ordinary
SEITFERBTEER shares under the company’s share
28 (Hit22) option scheme for nil consideration
(note 22) 2,368 -
R=A=+—HBEER Number of ordinary shares (diluted) as
88 (#E) at 31 March 284,423 282,030
ARBEEERTEMELE BE_F-F The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
FZA=T-BLFEZSREBRNNER 2010 is the same as the basic earnings per share as the
EARBFMEE o potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive.

MOISELLE
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12. 28RS
AEERMEEERER - AHEOAKEERS
THEBAERRERUAPHEERRTHRER
ZER B AEBECEEZRTIMEET LR
D WEERE D BHRESAKNUTATERS

okt

(@)

Bo

EREBERERHEEARMMERED
fn A o

ERRNEBERNPEREREDRM
- ARRAEIRRE R - 8RN
FHEBRmMEREORE -

2 EBEE

AL DBERERIBOBERME @ &
EEzHSTHEEAENRIUTEE
ERBRATEZRDMEMGZEE

WERAXDIZ2EZEDBMAELE ZH
ERENAY  AEZESBEEEE 2T
EdBERAEEMOBRERAT2HRD A
KW peBexE  BEAREE

CER-SE B

SAEETE2RD MENREEMERH 2
FHEARKERER, (BE) - BERX
(BER)FEIREATERIE °

MOISELLE

12.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The group manages its businesses by geography. In a

manner consistent with the way in which information is

reported internally to the group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the group has presented the

following two reportable segments. No operating segments

have been aggregated to form the following reportable

segments.

(a)

The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of house

brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

The outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China and
sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
group’s senior executive management monitors the
results attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment to

another, including sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss
is profit/(loss) from operations. Taxation charge/(credit)

is not allocated to reportable segments.
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D EBEE (A

ATEHRD M2 ST BREM T AES
SESETHEMER -

BE-T——FR-F-FF=ZA=1+-—
HLFE FHOFAKESRSTREEA
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EEATERIB2ERBIIMT :
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12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(@) Segment results (continued)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the group’s accounting policies described

in note 1.

Information regarding the group’s reportable segments
as provided to the group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 is set out below:

Ei BN @
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
“F--F -—%-%F -®--F “F-%FF ¥--F -2-%F%
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
r r r r r r
$'000 §000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
AREFUE Revenue from external customers 239,323 224,820 246,765 214,779 486,088 439,599
A HENE Inter-segment revenue 42,141 22,931 37,207 28,159 79,348 51,090
AT2HABUE Reportable segment revenue 281,464 247,751 283,972 242,938 565,436 490,689
AT2HIHEA Reportable segment profit 43,843 26,812 39,697 30,008 83,540 56,820
RIERZHERA Interest income from bank deposits 23 162 1,453 278 1,676 440
FEREY Interest expense (1 (3) - - (1 (3)
ERfTEREE Depreciation and amortisation
for the year (6,629) (8937) (12905 (12216 (19534)  (21,153)
TH&RAE Impairment of
- EWES ~ trade receivables - = (302) = (302) =
-BEEE ~ fixed assets (169) (719) - - (169) (719)

MOISELLE
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7 ERER E (A7) 12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
b) EFERIBEZZHER (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss
—E——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
U & Revenue
REZ2®/D W2 B U EH Total revenue from reportable segments 565,436 490,689
220 [ U 2 = 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (79,348) (51,090)
e s Consolidated revenue 486,088 439,599
—E——F —E-BF
2011 2010
T Fr
$’000 $'000
i Al Profit
ATE2H/DEEA Reportable segment profit 83,540 56,820
Hiblg ARz, Other revenue and net income/(loss) 4,108 1,186
(B8) F5
A& B A Finance costs (1) (3)
T REEYURKRE Valuation gains on land and buildings
LY A6 and investment properties 5,000 5,349
BLEERNRZER Share of losses of a jointly controlled entity (179) (90)
BRTE AT 47 5 i Al Consolidated profit before taxation 92,468 63,262

MOISELLE
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(c)

B o M

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 B & R

TRHIBFANEEBIAZEF KRG K
(IVAEEBEEEERGE AR ([HBEHE
MEEE]) 2HBNEER - BF Zith
BNEBDREBEREUEBREIRNER 2L
EETE -EEFRBDEEZHEMNETIR
BEECERNE (MBYE BERR
B REEHE (HBREE AR ZER)

(c)

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the group’s fixed assets and
a jointly controlled entity (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were

provided or the goods delivered. The geographical

MEE ° location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, and the location of
operations, in the case of interest in a jointly
controlled entity.

HREF 2 W EEFRBEE
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—®--% -T-FF -¥—-F -F-F%F
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fr T Fr T
$/000 $000 $/000 $/000

&8 (i) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 239,323 224,820 262,286 202,536

HR Bl K B Mainland China 183,901 174,385 103,177 63,100

=3 Taiwan 36,022 25,720 988 1,379

Hit B =X Other countries 26,842 14,674 2,275 1,283

246,765 214,779 106,440 65,762
486,088 439,599 368,726 268,298

MOISELLE
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13. BE&EE 13. FIXED ASSETS
@ #*&£H (@) The group

G Br

28 EKR

BAEEE

DONEL] kAE

BEERAZ Furniture,

THREEY fixtures,

landand ~ IXHE  computer
huildings REH  andofice  MENE

held for own Plant  equipment £8 RENZ
use carried and  and motor Leasehold Nt Investment st
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total

r r n r r n r
$'000 $000 $'000 $/000 $000 $'000 $'000

AARTEE Cost or valuation:
R-ZRAEMA-A At 1 April 2009 170,420 6,211 19,797 42,532 238,960 15,820 254,780
ENRE Exchange adjustments 309 - 13 117 439 - 49
BE Additions = = 2,987 8,602 11,589 - 11,589
HE Disposals 5 = (125) (10,122) (10,247) 5 (10,247)
BfiBH Surplus on revaluation 59,468 - - - 59,468 - 59,468
B 2 REHS Less: Elimination of

accumulated

depreciation (4397) - - - (4,397) - (4397)
DERE Fair value adjustment - - - = = 4,400 4,400
W-2-BEZA=t-B At31 March 2010 225,800 6,211 22,672 41,129 295,812 20,220 316,032
ik Representing:
BA Cost = 6,211 22,67 41,129 70,012 = 70,012
ftE--%-%F Valuation - 2010 225,800 = = = 225,800 20,220 246,020

225,800 6,211 22,672 41,129 295,812 20,220 316,032

ARG A Cost or valuation:
E@\:g-giﬂ—ﬁ At 1 April 2010 225,800 6,211 22,672 41,129 295,812 20,220 316,032
ERRZ Exchange adjustments 2271 200 384 1,039 3,804 = 3,804
BE Additions 8,872 = 1,877 12,829 23,578 = 23,578
hirkS Disposals = - (2,545) (14,170) (16,715) - (16,715)
EfERE Surplus on revaluation 89,976 - - - 89976 - 89976
B 2 EHH Less: Elimination of

accumulated

depreciation (6,091) - - - (6,091) - (6,091)
DAEREZ Fair value adjustment = = = = = 5,000 5,000
Wg--f=f=t-B At31 March 2011 320,828 6,411 22,388 40,827 390,454 25,220 415,674
fik: Representing;
A Cost = 6,411 22,388 40,827 69,626 - 69,626
fE--5--F Valuation - 2011 320,628 = = = 320,828 25,220 346,048

320,828 6,411 22,388 40,827 390,454 25,220 415,674

MOISELLE
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13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

REHE (&) (@) The group (continued)
Bl B
%8 EHR
HAZER
U B kRE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
landand ~ IXXE  computer
buildings L#H  andoffice  HENE
held for own Plant  equipment £6 RENE
use carried and  and motor  Leasehold Nt Investment st
atfair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
T T T T T T T
§/000 §/000 §/000 §/000 §000 §/000 §/000
EERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
R-ZENENA-A At 1 April 2009 - 3149 13461 B34 3994 -390
EXAZ Exchange adjustments - = 1 63 74 = 74
REENE Charge for the year 4397 387 2,384 13,985 21,153 - 21,153
HEESR Impairment losses - - - 719 719 - 719
1 ERED Written back on disposal - - (120 (9,293) (9,413) - (9,413)
BEEHE Elimination on revaluation (4,397) = - = (4,397) - (4,397)
ﬁé_;%_—_ BEZA= _Jr_ - At3T March200 = 3,536 15,736 28,768 48,060 = 48,060
EERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
E@\:g-giﬂ—ﬁ At 1 April 2010 - 3,536 15,736 28,788 48,060 = 48,060
ER#E Exchange adjustments - 90 233 986 1,309 = 1,309
AEEHE Charge for the year 6,091 394 2,101 10,938 19,534 - 19,534
AEEE Impairment losses - - - 169 169 - 169
1 ERED Written back on disposal - - (1863) (141700 (16,033) - (16,033)
EftRYH Elimination on revaluation (6,091 - - - (6,091) - (6,091)
R=2--%ZR=t-B AT March 2011 - 4,020 16,217 26,711 46,948 - 46,948
REFE: Net hook value:
RZE--£=B=+-H At31 March 2011 320,828 2,391 6,171 14116 343,506 25200 368,726
RZE-ZEZA=1-A At31 March 2010 225,800 2,675 6,936 12341 247,75 2020 267,972

MOISELLE
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13. BEESE (&)

(b)

(o)

(d)

EEE
R-ZB——% BETREELBENUREE

B BErEHEEEEETRELERE -
It EECEHEREETEEEZTWER
B MBEBEEEZEHEESMEE169,000
T (=ZZE—F%F :719,0007t) (st AT
REMSEHEEIR) o ATREIFRIETDR
BREEEMRB R eEEENZE
AEEME -

R=ZZE——F=ZA=+—-8 FEEZR
BEMEUNESEREBRANBENELZ
FHERAZGBHEZARTERESE
ETEM - MERBIGEEQAREHE
EFEEBARAR (REEBNE SR
EMZ2EEE 28 T X HUNMEEY
EE R AR BBIL 2 ER) #T -

R-Z——H=A=+—H  ~5E#HE
BRzZTREREY USEREZMS
REMALLBRZWEREAE M SERE
TEM - HETHBENTEEFGERE
PR A B (16 38 42 7O P i B ) 36 3t 25 I 36
BRFE 2R ET REMRBRERE
89,976,0007T (= ZE—ZF : 59,468,000
Jt) H > 89,976,000t (ZF —FF :
58,519,0007T) & 0 FRIE E 15 Bt (M &%
23(b)) #EREZEMHEME (MEE10) - ™
B#ZET (ZZ—FF 1 949,000t) ER
REBBRERFTA

MOISELLE

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Impairment losses

In 2011, certain cash generating units recorded losses
which indicate the related fixed assets might have
been impaired. As a result, the directors reviewed the
recoverable amount of the relevant fixed assets and
the carrying amount of such assets was written down
by $169,000 (2010: $719,000) (included in
“administrative and other operating expenses”). The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on value
in use of the cash generating units to which these

assets belong.

The group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 March 2011 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location

and category of property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use were
revalued at 31 March 2011 at their open market value
by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties. The valuations were carried
out by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited who
has recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. Out of the total revaluation
surplus of $89,976,000 (2010: $59,468,000),
$89,976,000 (2010: $58,519,000) has been transferred
to the revaluation reserve (note 10), net of deferred tax
(note 23(b)) and a surplus of $Nil (2010: $949,000)
has been credited to the consolidated income

statement.
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d) (#&)
ff FMIFEEA 2 T HEEREYE RK
KRR EINER R=F——F=A
=+—BzKREEH%88,308,0007T (=
T —F4F :78,791,0007T) °
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13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(d) (continued)
Had the above land and buildings held for own use
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
the carrying amounts would have been $88,308,000
(2010: $78,791,000) at 31 March 2011.

(e) The analysis of net book value of properties is as

follows:
rEH
The group
—g-—% =—B-%F
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
REB In Hong Kong
-RHEEE — Long leases 99,770 68,020
—FhHEEE — Medium-term leases 150,250 123,400
- EHAE — Short leases 4,440 3,300
BHBEN Outside Hong Kong
-REBHEE - Long leases 14,292 7,296
—FhHEEE — Medium-term leases 77,296 44,004
346,048 246,020

MOISELLE
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13. BEESE (&)

(M)

RESEHEHACEEEE
FERBEEHERAANERENE
EREZNERBRREME -

AEEZREEHERHRENE - LEHA
E-ROTHB-—FZ=F > AATRLW
REHFBRAARRER - HEVRER
FEZERE  URRTEAS - L
EHEYTEERERE -

FEERFUBRBRNELEHETARE
WHREAS A RBENT :

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

®

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

The group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

The group’s total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

as follows:
rEE

The group
—g--% -B-T§
2011 2010
Fr T
$/000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 1,211 917
—E#ERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 391 1,056
1,602 1,973

MOISELLE
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14. RMBAT 2R 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
AN
The company

—g--F  -B-%%

2011 2010

Fr FTr

$’000 $'000

LMD BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672

JE W BT B 2 R R IE Amount due from a subsidiary 162,352 191,794

224,024 253,466
FEWHEARRESEER  REREETEE Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
ME G BT EREERA R —FRKE - and has no fixed terms of repayment but is not expected to

be recovered within one year from the balance sheet date.

MOISELLE
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14. RMB AR 2= (&) 14.
TRAXEBZHB AR ZHE - REEFZH
I FEBEEZRHBEAZER -

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of
the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

BRTRER
R /2
EAZFHE BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
EMA L of issued and r5E
REELE fully paid-up BERESR N WEAR
Place of share/ Group's BE BE TTER
NGIES incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited * ABABRHEE  2000RBREEIZR 100% 100% - REER
British Virgin Islands 2,000 shares Investment
of US$1each holding
Always Profit Holdings ABERARE REEIZT 100% - 100% RERR
Limited * British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment
holding
BEARAA i 100k EREET 100% - 100% B 1o FR B
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of $1 each EHE5
Trading of
fashion apparel
and accessories
BHBEHBERLA BB EEERRE 100% - 100% NRRER
Boo Gie Garment Hong Kong 200,000% ESE
Factory Limited BREEIT Sourcing of
LB 1,800,001 materials and
EREEIT property
Deferred non-voting holding
200,000 shares of
$1 each

MOISELLE

Ordinary 1,800,001 shares

of §1 each
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(A& ¥ %’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. RMB AT 2% () 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTRAR
BA/ G
Bz BRRERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
A A of issued and AEE
REEH fully paid-up BERER NG WEAH
Place of share/ Group's BE BE EX:3 3
RRER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
BEEERRAT B RBREE T 100% - 100% RARR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
BE(ER)ARAT i AR ERERT 100% - 100% B 1o AR B %
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of $1 each BHE5
Trading of
fashion apparel
and accessories
HEERERLT 2 2RERERT 100% - 100% REER
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
RERGERAF B 1,008 8 REE T 100% - 100% REZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of §1 each Investment
holding
Euro Legend Assets ABERARE IREEIZT 100% = 100% REER
Limited * British Virgin 1 share of US§1 Investment
Islands holding
AARAT 2 100R B REE T 100% - 100% REER
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of $1 each Investment
holding

MOISELLE
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14. RMB AR 2= (&)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRARAR
BA /R
BRzwfs KAERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
AR of issued and ES 3L
REEHH fully paid-up ERER NG WEAH
Place of share/ Group's BE BE EX:3 3
NRER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
tEARERAF S 300,008 100% - 100%  FEERH
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong BREET RE
300,000 shares Retail of fashion
of §1 each apparel and
accessories
UERREARARAF B2 JRBREEIT 100% - 100% REER
iMaroon International Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
Company Limited holding
WERERRA & 10000RBRERIT 100% - 100% WEHA
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Property
holding
& (BB ARLT g2 500,000% 100% - 100%  FEEHDREH
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong BREET RE
500,000 shares Retail of fashion
of $1 each apparel and
accessories
FRERARAF B2 RBREE T 100% - 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. ¢ A IREREE 100% - 100%  SERERE
Singapore 1R RE &
2 shares Retail of fashion

MOISELLE

of SG$1 each

apparel and

accessories
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA7E ¥ %5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTRER
R/
EAZ#E BEER LA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
AR L of issued and +£H
REEHE fully paid-up BERER NG WEAR
Place of share/ Group's B BE TTER
NGIES incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
RERRRA ABEBRREE 1REEIET 100% - 100%  SERR R
Onexcel Limited * British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 RE &
Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
EEREARLT i 500,000 100% - 100%  BEREHRS
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong SREEIT REH
500,000 shares Retail of fashion
of $1 each apparel and
accessories
REERERAT & 4,000 100% - 100%  TERHRE
Perfect National Hong Kong BREEIT RE&H
International Limited 4,000 shares Retail of fashion
of $1 each apparel and
accessories
EERRAT ABEBRES 1REEIET 100% - 100% REER
Profair Limited® British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment
holding
EERRARAF i IREREMET 100% - 100%  BERHRS
Regal Dragon Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each REH
Development Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories

MOISELLE
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14. RMB AR 2= (&)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRARAR
BA/
Bzt KAERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
AR of issued and LS 3L
REEHH fully paid-up ERER NG WEAR

Place of share/ Group's BE BE EX:3 9
RAER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
BREERRAF B 1,008 R EE T 100% - 100% ESE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property
of §1 each holding
EERERRAR B3 ‘BB RERT 100% - 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
ERAERLE ZBAERER  10000RERABIER 100% - 100% RERR
Sosuccess Limited® British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares Investment
of US$1 each holding
REARERAR ARERMREE IREEIXR 100% - 100% RERR
Timepro International Limited®  British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment
holding
BRBEBRAT AP EREx 100% - 100%  FEEHRH
Treasure Light Fashion Limited® Macau 25,0008 ¢ KB
Registered capital Retail of fashion
MOP25,000 apparel and
accessories
RARERRAF &R JREREET 100% - 100% REER
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding

MOISELLE
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERATRARE
Rx /i
Bz BRERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
AL of issued and 7.3
REEHE fully paid-up BERER NG WEAR
Place of share/ Group's BE B8 TEEHR
REER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
REBNERAT g2 500,000% 100% - 100% B 1o AR 6 %
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong BREET EHES
500,000 shares Trading of fashion
of §1 each apparel and
accessories
BRER (R BRAT RE M E%2,100,0007 100% - 100% HERK
Ming Fung Garment The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) $2,100,000 of garments
Company Limited **
#HERE (R ERAT HE FE & 48,400,000 100% - 100% HERK
Yubao Fashionable Dress The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ¥ $8,400,000 of garments
RESRHERBBRA A T EMER 100% - 100% BB
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC AR#500,0007 R e R B
Wholesale Co., Ltd. ** Registered capital Wholesale of
RMB500,000 fashion apparel
and accessories
REXERTERRLA © RE EMER 100% - 100% FERKBER
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion The PRC AR#2,000,0007 R B e 2 6
Retail Limited Company * Registered capital Retail and
RMB2,000,000 wholesale of

* REPEEMEMZNEBERE -

£
HAm

BRE MBI IZE DR ZEER

fashion apparel

and accessories

These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
registered under the laws of the PRC.

KPMG are not statutory auditors of these companies.

MOISELLE
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15. REERTIZ2RER 15. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
rEE
The group
—B-—F —E-2F
2011 2010
Fr FTr
$’000 $'000
WS & D RIRE Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity 269 416
EihEEFEE Share of net liabilities (269) (90)
- 326
REBRAL DT ZESHEBNT : Details of the group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity
are as follows:
FEEHLA
Proportion of ownership interest
BETR
5% MR IR BERRERE rEE
RERA ES-$E Particulars ERER
RENEAR Form of Place of of issued Group's AAEEE MEBLARKS TEXK
Name of jointly business incorporation and paid effective Held by the Held by a Principal
controlled entity structure and operation up capital interest ~ company  subsidiary activity
Sequoia HK, il B 10088 i 50% = 50% TERN
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HET R #1526
100 shares Retail of fashion
of $1 each apparel and

accessories

MOISELLE
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16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

REE DR 2% (&) 15.

alj

RELAZUBERBE-FAEEERER

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)
Summary financial information on the jointly controlled

entity — group’s effective interest:

—E——fF —E-EF

2011 2010

Fr T

$7000 $'000

FRBEE Non-current assets 46 124

MEEE Current assets 314 292

REBEE Current liabilities (629) (506)

BEFE Net liabilities (269) (90)

KA Income 456 32

B Expenses (635) (122)

Fr/HBRER Loss for the year/period (179) (90)
HiEE 16. OTHER ASSETS

HiEEREEE  AHREREMEZEE - B
AIREE AR —FREE -

RZEBE——E-A+N\A REEFTL—7HE
BARNZ2EBEEESH  UKWE—EEEY
¥ HRAEE ZFT€©37,499,000 T HAEE
Xft e EEEHBBER - ——FNAFH
ZAITER ©

Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits
which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

balance sheet date.

On 18 February 2011, the group entered into a binding
memorandum for sale and purchase to acquire a property
in Hong Kong whereby a non-refundable deposit of
$37,499,000 was paid by the group. The directors expect
the acquisition to be completed on or before mid of August
2011.

MOISELLE
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17. #& 17. INVENTORIES
(@ MEFEEEBRZTFEEHRE: (@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:
rEE
The group

—g--% -B-T§
2011 2010
Fr T
$/000 $000
=4 Raw materials 9,660 7,025
E8m Work in progress 1,338 1,961
SR m Finished goods 52,195 46,611
63,193 55,597
b) BRABXIAFABRZZFESEHZS (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

waR as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

follows:
rEE
The group
—g-—-5 c—E=-=%
2011 2010
Fr T
$000 $'000
EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 96,237 81,983
(Missmm),HMHEFE (Reversal of write down)/write down

of inventories (6,017) 3,566
90,220 85,549

MOISELLE



Annual Report 2011

W B e 3R B R
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. FEUWER Fx & H fih FE UL & 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEE NN
The group The company
—g-——% -—B-ZTF —F--4& —B-%
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fr T T Fr
$/000 $7000 $/000 $7000
P& W BR AR Trade debtors 22,066 19,305 - -
B REREE Less: Allowance for doubtful
(K17 18(b)) debts (note 18(b)) - (250) - -
22,066 19,055 - -
JE W2 B /&8 2 B K18 Amount due from a subsidiary - - 60,000 10,000
e ANRER Deposits, prepayments and other
H fth FE W 5K receivables 27,283 30,425 117 109
49,349 49,480 60,117 10,109
PP FE IR BR FR I HL At FE UR R (B2 35 FE WL /B & All of the trade and other receivables (including amount
Bl ZFIE) R —FAREISERBMAX due from a subsidiary) are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expenses within one year.

MOISELLE



Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e R AR AR A W

W B e Ak M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAE®57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. FEUWRRFR I H ftb B UL ()
@ HRERDAT

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@) Ageing analysis

FEWRRREMERREEE S BRI Included in trade and other receivables are trade
HONRRREE) NEE R 2R DT debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the
wmE following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:
r&EHE
The group
—E——F =
2011 2010
Fr T
$/000 $000
REBREZIRE Outstanding balances aged:
308 Within 30 days 13,843 16,001
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 7,631 2,351
91HZE180H Between 91 to 180 days 410 321
181HZ365H Between 181 to 365 days 182 382
22,066 19,055
EWERRBEZEAEF30E90H 2 Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
H o REBEEBER 2 — S EH MK date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit

*25(a) °

MOISELLE

policy are set out in 25(a).
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18. BEUWARFR R H b UK ()

(b)

& W B 2 BB

FEW BRR 2 BB RS IR LABE AR B RO 8% © BR
FAREEFEHWEEBERE T REMER
X EEBRT @ BESEEREEWR
F R (REET(h)(0) °

REEBERFRA 22 (BEFERER
BEBD)WT :

W B e 3R B R
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors directly (see note 1(h)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective

loss components, are as follows:

rEHE

The group
—E-—fF “E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
REERSB At beginning of the year 250 250
mARRERE Impairment losses recognised 302 =
85 7 T 1 [B] R 0R Uncollectible amounts written off (552) -
REER At end of the year = 250

R=ZZE——F=A=+-—8  AEEZE
WERRAZ (ZZF—FF 1 250,000T) E
BB E AR A o 18 Bl iR {E FE R BR 7% T B2
HEMHRR$EE A O BERARERS
EREAZT (ZE—Z4 :250,0005T) °
REEI B Z S E T B EMIKTR o

At 31 March 2011, the group’s trade debtors of Nil (2010:
$250,000) were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties and specific allowances
for doubtful debts of Nil (2010: $250,000) were recognised.

The group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

MOISELLE
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18. BEUWRRFR R H b UK ()
(c) 3 R fE 2 FE W iR X
3 48 18 Y 25 2k [B] 4% 48 23 B 18 2 & W AR 3K

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

ZIREDMAT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:
~EHE
The group
—2-—-F —Z2-%F
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
I 42 380 2 SR B Neither past due nor impaired 13,843 16,001
BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 7,007 2,209
BHE31HE90H 31 to 90 days past due 928 482
BH91HZE180H 91 to 180 days past due 261 172
BH181HZ365H 181 to 365 days past due 27 191
8,223 3,054
22,066 19,055

3 4 360 5 =R (B 2 B WU B R AR
MU BEBYTEZBEREF -

EEAMERMEZ KRR E—#t &
FEEERHRGTHZIBITFER -
HREEEZTEEREHRERDNDA
WRAAUTEZWE  REBELER - §
BEEMGLEMSERNZEERFHRE
BB - AEE W ERZS AT EMIR
e e

MOISELLE

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.



Annual Report 2011

B e 3R B R
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. BERBITER 19. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(@ RERBOTFERERE: (@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:
X&EHE ADH
The group The company
2% CZZ-F§ C-B--§ CZZT-%F
2011 2010 2011 2010
T T T T
$000 $"000 $/000 $000
RITHER Deposits with banks
-FRAER=EAR —  Within three months to
) maturity when placed 10,110 66,145 - =
-EFHAR=@EA% — More than three months to
Ep maturity when placed 61,033 47,955 - =
-RITEZREE — Cash at bank and in hand 99,518 56,040 963 896

REEEERZHEEK  Cash and bank deposits in
RITER the balance sheets 170,661 170,140 963 896

B FEHBE=M@A® Less: Deposits with bank with
FH 2 RITER more than three months
to maturity when placed (61,033) (47,955)

REEHERERZ Cash and cash equivalents in
ReRBEEEEY the consolidated cash flow
statement 109,628 122,185

MOISELLE
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19. RERBITER(AE)

19. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

b) BRBAGHNEKEXBREEZREZ (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
R generated from operations:
—E-—-fF —E-2F
2011 2010
Fr FTr
$/000 $000
RR%E Bl A Profit before taxation 92,468 63,262
T SIE AR Adjustments for:
T REEYURBRENE Net valuation gains on land and
2 EWN S FEE buildings and investment properties (5,000) (5,349)
e Depreciation 19,534 21,153
EE & ERERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 169 719
& W BR TR B 1 Impairment losses on trade debtors 302 -
FMERX Interest expense 1 3
FE KA Interest income (1,676) (440)
HEBEEEZ (&), Net (gain)/lloss on disposal of
BiEFE fixed assets (563) 578
BEEE AR ZEE Share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity 179 90
EXEE Foreign exchange loss 1,281 6
EEELEE: Changes in working capital:
H&EE (Em),md (Increase)/decrease in other assets (36,787) 1,297
BE (Em),Ed (Increase)/decrease in inventories (5,163) 17,752
BlREERARARERD Decrease/(increase) in amount due
(#&n) from a jointly controlled entity 147 (416)
P i B R % LAt FE W R Decrease/(increase) in trade and
B, (E ) other receivables 1,427 (2,295)
FE 1 BR R % L At B 4 SR 4B A Increase in trade and other payables 3,166 3,690
REXBEEZRE Cash generated from operations 69,485 100,050

MOISELLE
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(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

rEE ZNNE]
The group The company
—E-—-F —ET-TF —ET--F ZE-F

2011 2010 2011 2010

T T Tr T

$/000 $7000 $/000 $7000

&1 BR X Trade payables 5,178 6,497 - -
HAi A RIBR Other creditors and accrued

EitEAR charges 51,943 46,700 2,330 2,069

57,121 53,197 2,330 2,069

EHRAERNRAREMEMREIER-FR
EE -

BARAREMENREEE S RARARE
HEHZREDTOT :

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors

with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

date:
ARE

The group
—g—-5 -B-2F
2011 2010
Fr T
$’000 $'000

AEEREE IR Outstanding balances aged:

308 A Within 30 days 3,598 3,328
31H£90H Between 31 to 90 days 1,072 2,776
#1890 H Over 90 days 508 393
5,178 6,497

MOISELLE
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21. EERKEF

(a)

AEBEREEBCGaFIE DB EURH)
HREB(EBRA) EBREBRERZ
EEHTRHEABEHE (BES
2l  BELHIAHBUSTIAEE
ZREMFERNETE - REFBBESEE
BEEREESEREEBBEVRAZ5%M0
ZirEER BEEABBERALRA
20,0007C ° BIEE T B 2 H R DR
% °

TEZHBLARCSHEAM S RFER
ZREMRARETE - LEHE D R ARHE
BEFBEF A TEELRQZTE
R o fERTIENBSER B o

e %%%ZM‘JJE"TZEEEﬁ
BRAREFRMIEE 2 REM
o /B2 B AR 2 R E K ETE
‘ZEE&E%&%M%‘EZU’M o HEH

RERRE IRBREZBARKEERS
& o

MOISELLE

21.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to

the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act. The
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees that choose to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution
deposited into individual pension accounts at the

Bureau of Labour Insurance.
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21. BERKER (&)

(d) FAET IR B L Rz & T 2 82 /i #7 I K
BFAS R RAEEHE (THROE
) MEBARARETIZTERHEFTH2
ETEHOLKEAPRABEHR  REPR
DEEHRG BERREAZHEEHAR
WmERA - WEAREARRE  HEER
AXNHBRAREZEBNILEE-PHE
ERE -

BREmEN  AEBSEEMNERESRE
RBANRZEMEREE -

REARFEZHARELFTHARS

22, URABFANRZROERR S

ARBAR-Z2-_F-A-+HEAKRN—EE
PRAERT &I ([=%at8l)) » BMADB AR HBRAE
THRREZSHE  FRARSHAKEFLHE
Rz BN RE - ZEHEIB M A HEEN
TR+FERBER -

RIFZETE - A AR ESEREIRIE[EM
AABIEEMAHBELRAZEHES - THA
ENERBE (BREES) IEMLHRNEH
AEBEMERERZ HERD - BHABERD - KEH
FEBRHBREUZBRAIDESSHEE
BB 2R DTN o RERRIERER - A&
AZBBARARZMN.00TEREREREZNR

&

21.

28

W B e 3R B R
Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(d)  Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
organised by the government of Singapore. The
subsidiary and the employees are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-

retirement benefits beyond their contributions.

Save as set out above, the group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten

years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are
authorised, at their discretion, to offer full-time employees,
executives or officers, including the directors of the
company or any of its subsidiaries or any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers who will or have
contributed to the group, options to subscribe for such
number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance
of the option, the grantee shall pay $1.00 to the company

by way of consideration for the grant.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e R AR AR A W

W B e & B
Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. UREADTANRZRODERKS (&) 22.
BREZTEEARD2EHE RRHEEAR
HRER ATz W E SRR ERE B A A ER
ZARORBRFA2FHRHE(UBRSER

#) o

BRERTEALEASEZ&EHE - ME
RETARHBERESHESQSERESS
AREZHRATE  EZHRAEBEBERE
RERE ARES TF - SHBERENSSETH
FEARRAURE -RR®D -

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant and the average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the

five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and the options are
exercisable for a period to be notified by the directors to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years commencing on the date on which
the option is granted. Each option gives the holder the right

to subscribe for one share.

(@ BREZH (@ Movements in share options

—E——F —E-FF

2011 2010

2 A A

Number Number

REERLE At beginning of the year 5,900,000 5,920,000
FRITHE Exercised during the year (100,000) =
FRRR Lapsed during the year - (20,000)
REER At end of the year 5,800,000 5,900,000
R=ZA=+—BHEEBZERE Options vested at 31 March 5,800,000 5,900,000

MOISELLE
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(c)

(d)

REEHEREEZEREZRRREHYS
(1 N

W B e 3R B R
Notes to the Financial Statements
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22. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b)

The terms and conditions of the share options that

existed at the year end are as follows:

— i —E2-ZF
TEE 2011 2010
REHAH TREHE Exercise price 2B #E
Date of grant Exercisable period $ Number Number
—EF-FENMACH “EE_FENAZ+=HZE 1.15 5,800,000 5,900,000
—E-ZFNA—H
2 April 2002 23 April 2002 to 1 April 2012
REXNBRETEZEE (c) Details of share options exercised during the year:
RITEBRZ
BRHE I B
THEE Market value 8= A
TR Exercisable per share at Proceeds #A
Exercise date price exercise date received Number
$ $ $
—2-ZF+=-A=tNR 1.15 2.40 115,000 100,000

28 December 2010

HRASERAC(EBHEREER) 2
SR 17 73 B2 ST 2 B E %
X ARBYERFER-BT_F+—
ARRH 22 EBRERIEMARX

(d) The group has not recognised any expenses in respect
of these share options, which were all granted prior to
November 2002, as it took advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 2, Share-based

payment.

MOISELLE
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23. GREERBRATRZAER

23.

@ HFEEERERATRZFZPREERE:

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet

represents:

~EHE
The group
—E——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
REEFBFEH Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
] for the year 5,729 442
ENTEHFER Provisional Profits Tax paid (2,541) (231)
3,188 211
BEBBIIHIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 6,399 6,180
9,587 6,391
K& Representing:
A ERIE Tax recoverable (334) (2)
T8 1E Tax payable 9,921 6,393
9,587 6,391

MOISELLE
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REE
REAFEEFRFEEEBRERZEL
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23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The group
The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

HESNER
KEAHE HBERZ
Depreciation A&A® KEH
in excess of  EfEWE Future  FEEN  HMHEFE
the related  Revaluation benefits ~ Unrealised Write
depreciation of of tax  profits on down of ag
allowances  properties losses inventories  inventories Total
r r r Tr r r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
R=ZZREMA—A (EF])  At1 April 2009 (restated) (2,211) 15,394 (1,089) (1,245) - 10,849
BREERINE/ GTA) Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss 18 45 409 (230) (1,880) (1,638)
kR Charged to reserves - 10,429 - - - 10,429
RZZ-FF=A=t-8  At31 March 2010
(E51) (restated) (2,193) 25,868 (680) (1,475) (1,880) 19,640
BREERNR/ GTA) Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss 113 - 410 (172) (1,745) (1,394)
fRfE R Charged to reserves - 18,432 - - - 18,432
RZE--F=f=1—H At 31 March 2011 (2,080) 44,300 (270) (1,647) (3,625) 36,678

MOISELLE
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23. REEEEBRIITZAEH (&) 23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
by ERIELFEHREERER : (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)
rEH
The group
—EF——F —E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
(E31)
(Restated)
REERBERBIAZEL Net deferred tax asset recognised
M EEFE on the balance sheet (6,793) (5,258)
REERBRBERAZEL Net deferred tax liability recognised
FEHAaETE on the balance sheet 43,471 24,898
36,678 19,640

MOISELLE



Annual Report 2011
A BE AR i

23. GREEERBRATRZHAEHR (H)

(c)

B B oA M
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23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

RERELEFMEBREE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
REBHERMEIMZEHEER  AEEAR In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
AABIAERTHESMEERBRIEL note 1(n), the group and the company have not
FRiSHERE : recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the
following temporary differences:
AEE AN
The group The company
—E-—f 22 —E--§ Z2-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fr T Fr Fr
$/000 $000 $/000 $000
HisEE Tax losses 113,710 95,421 10,944 10,722
WEZNEE Depreciation in excess of
TERBE the related depreciation
allowances 54 770 - -
113,764 96,191 10,944 10,722

AERBEEERATEELEFEFTER
ZEBRZHFEANEAZKIE25,778,0007T
(=ZZ2—F4:17,228,0007T) ° RIBERE
TSR > 87%887,932,000L (ZF—F
£ 178,193,0007T) M fE [Eim A o

24. EXR - HEREER

(@)

BaEHBn 228

FEEGARBEBORFIRFEZ
HRENGERZEDR - AR AEES
BORFORFE2RBFRHNTI -

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$25,778,000 (2010: $17,228,000) which can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which
the loss originated. The remaining balance of
$87,932,000 (2010: $78,193,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below.
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24, BEXR - BERKRE (&)
(a) HEEHHP2EH (E)
KR F]

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(@) Movements in components of equity (continued)

The company

Bx  ERtokE RARR  RERN ARR#ER

Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZENEMA-HZEH Balance at 1 April 2009 2,821 58,601 61,572 91,839 214,833
ZERAE/-RECERED: Changes in equity in 2009/10:
FR2HWGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 58,850 58,850
EECHEZRE (Wa24b)ii) Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (5,641) (5,641)
REECERZRE (HaZ240)1)) Dividend declared in respect of
the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (5,640) (5,640)
R-E-ZE=A=1+-HK Balance at 31 March 2010
“E-ZEMA-AER and 1 April 2010 2,821 58,601 61,572 139,408 262,402
R-B-2F/--F2BEEH: Changes in equity in 2010/11:
ER2ERELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 59,745 59,745
RIBEREST BIRT 2R (Hi£24(c)  Shares issued under share option
scheme (note 24(c)) 1 114 - - 115
EECREZRE (Br24(b)i) Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (28,203) (28,203)
KEEEERZRE (H240)0)) Dividend declared in respect of
the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (11,285) (11,285)
R=E--F=B=1+-Az&% Balance at 31 March 2011 2,822 58,715 61,572 159,665 282,774
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24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends

ERAAREERRZEAEFERE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—E-—-fF —E-2F
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
EERRIKAFHRE Interim dividend declared and paid
BREERAML of 4 cents per ordinary share
(ZE2-FF: (2010: 2 cents per ordinary share)
BRI BER21L) 11,285 5,640
REERREZDIKARIMKRE Final dividend proposed after
BRE®ER134 the balance sheet date of 13
(ZZ2—%5F: cents per ordinary share
BREERIOML) (2010: 10 cents per ordinary share) 36,677 28,203
47,962 33,843

REEREREZ DR ZRHREIL

AELEHBRIBRAE

The final dividend proposed after the balance
sheet date has not been recognised as a liability

at the balance sheet date.

ENARABEERR 2 £ —HEHE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

ERE - RAFEERERIKN

company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

—E-—fF —Z2-Z2F
2011 2010
T T
$/000 $000
BRE-PHREE IR Final dividend in respect of the
AEEEBRAERIKM previous financial year, approved
REKREFRI01L and paid during the year, of 10 cents
(ZE-ZF : 8K per share (2010: 2 cents per share) 28,203 5,641
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24. EX - RERRE (&) 24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital
FEERE ZITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—g2--F —E-%F
2011 2010
R4 EE RAEE
Number Number
of shares of shares
TR Tr T Tr
000 $000 000 $000
EE Authorised:
SREMEOITZEERE  Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
BRTRARE: Issued and fully paid:
REERR At beginning of the year 282,030 2,821 282,030 2,821
BEBERETERT2 Shares issued under share
R 13 (HfE22(a) option schemes (note 22(a)) 100 1 = =
REER Atend of the year 282,130 2,822 282,030 2,821

EBEREEAEREBRTREIRZ
RE BEARAERLERTE
—EREE -EEREREARAT
ZHRBEEZRRSHES -

MOISELLE

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the company’s residual assets.
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24, BEXR - BERKRE ()
() BA&(E)

(ir)

RIZIEIRET BT Z KRG
R-ZZ—ZF+-A=+NB: I
K1E115,000cTEERERE
100,000 A X a2 ZBR > H &
1,0007T 51 A BR 2 | 85 88114,0007T
FARBIREIIRSEH ©

d) FEEERBEN

(i)

(ir)

R GEE

REREFHBELRE  RORER
ADRTFARBZRR  HERER
BoKREBHE  AATEANE
REORIMAEEEBEKBED
BEEZERE - ROBERTNAET
BERARNRD 25 XAFH DI

EiEeE
HihfhtEiER =TT -_F— A8
—tTREAAENZAEEEATWE
ZHBARZRAEEEBIIES
REZEAQARERHTRAZEAEZ
EE o

B B oA M

Notes to the Financial Statements
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24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Shares issued under share option scheme

On 28 December 2010, options were exercised
to subscribe for 100,000 ordinary shares in the
company at a consideration of $115,000, of
which $1,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of $114,000 was credited to the

share premium account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
distributable to shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the shares of the company issued in exchange
therefore pursuant to the group reorganisation

which became effective on 25 January 2002.

MOISELLE



Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e R AR AR A W

W B Ak MY Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAE®57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. BEX - RERRE (A)
(d HEEERBENE)

(iii) (B #E
EL#EESMERBRESTBEN
X¥BHBBREREECERZTH &
RERM T (QFTREHBERER -

(iv) ZEBBLIE
BESNEBEECEBEA2PEE
#oARRZ2PEIMEB AR AR
MELZERBAE  DHARKER
SREBIRBREMNES - BER
YR REEEELEAREERBE
A (RFPEERFTE) 210%8E 5
ARBEEESR BEEZES 2R
HERETMERZ50%5 Lk o It
BEZTAFRFBEERERAH
BEXRZ HEMBEARZES
SUMBEREBREEFEBER
IRBEEANES R-ZTZTHEF
TAZTtHBIEAE A==
ZERE-A—HBE FEEETHE
AAESME - B WEEE LR
REFANESFHER -

v) THMREZRYER#E
REBMER Y+ b R EEY B 7
B UREREGAEFEER LR
BEY PR 2 5T BUR (BEE1(F)
BRI o

MOISELLE

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out

in note 1(q).

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
owned foreign investment enterprises, the PRC
subsidiaries of the company are required to set
up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses and to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and

no transfer to staff general fund was made since.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(f)).
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(d)

(e)

()

HEEER BB (#E)

(vi) BHEER
EHRRERARBER-ST_F—
Bot+EAENzEBEEARNE
ZHEBARER 2 EHEEFENA
RATRBERNREZERITRG
2HEZZ5E BHRHBARHAE
B2 = B E e

CIRES )R

RZEBE——F=A=1+—H8 ' A2RFAK
NEIERRR 2 #EEEE%279,952,000
TT(=ZZ—F% :259,581,00070) ° R&
EH® BEEERIRARARESRIS
W(Z=—=F:GRI10ML) - &H# B
36,677,0007T (=& —Z % : 28,203,000
7t) (isE24(b) - WIERETERIA AL
EHzEE-

BEXERE
FEBEBREACBEEZREBEDRELRE
BREMEBEBRBHFECEEELE &M
BERERBKEREEZERRREE
BERUNGERFTESHE  HESRRA
EEHERASHMREFE NGRS

B o M

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A8 ¥ %5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
therefore pursuant to the group reorganisation
which became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $279,952,000 (2010: $259,581,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 13 cents per share (2010: 10 cents
per share), amounting to $36,677,000 (2010:
$28,203,000) (note 24(b)). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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24, BEXR - mERKRE ()

25.

()

EXREE(E)

AEEERTERENMNERLELSRE
BUESEE SRREBEBEEE
REFRNERNRA ZEEEFE - LE
EEBRENSCHERRBELRE -

HRASEEZANNESELEAD
o AEEBASAEEIREERER
ﬁ o

R-Z2——5H8 F&EEREA-ZF-F
F2RM  ERERFIRBUERTHE
EKRFENRBESHE - REFIAR
BEKF » REEAHARRNY TRR 2K
EE8  BOHRD  MRRREESH
HEBEENMBMBRETKF -

RABREWBLARBAZIBERZ
BARBRERS o

TRAREERAAME

-8

RBES FEXREBREABDELEE

EBEFREBBRPEL - AREAAEZ

ZERBRAEBEEZSAMARAZHH

EEREMNELR T -

MOISELLE

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

®

Capital management (continued)

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory returns
from internal capital, the group is not heavily financed

by external borrowings.

During 2011, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2010,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets to increase

the cash level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The

group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.

At the balance sheet date, 6% (2010: 8%) and 25%
(2010: 28%) of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the group’s largest debtor and the five

largest debtors respectively.
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25. EREREERQAEE)

(@)

(b)
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BRI S E AT S ARV R R AL
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. The group has not provided any
financial guarantee which would expose the group or

the company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the group’s and
the company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flow (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the

group and the company can be required to pay:
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

r5H
The group
= S —g-%%
2011 2010
HEER g HEE g}
Befd Beifd
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
-FRY L
BERA #HERz EBEBA #8RZ
W55 REE L REE
Within Balance Within Balance
1 year sheet 1 year sheet
or on B carrying or on BE  canying
demand Total amount demand Total amount
r r i i T e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BENRTREMER

Trade and other payables

57,121 57,121 57,121 53,197 53,197 53,197

MOISELLE
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25. EREREERQAEE)

(continued)
(b)y REBEZEER (E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
N
The company
—g--% -g-%
2011 2010
HEES g HEE g}
Befd Bemd
Contractual Contractual

undiscounted

cash outflow

undiscounted

cash outflow

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

—£Ag —FAg
BEEA GEHz EEEW #ERZ
CE RAEE S REE
Within Balance Within Balance
1 year sheet 1 year sheet
or on BE  carrying or on BE  canying
demand Total amount demand Total amount
Fr Fr r r r Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BRI REMEAR Trade and other payables 2,330 2,330 2,330 2,069 2,069 2,069

MOISELLE



Annual Report 2011
A BE AR i

25 EREREERQAEE)

(0 F=ER
AEEZANEZABTIERATEESRE
EO

(i) FIELEZ
TRAAEEREERAFEERE

W B e 3R B AR
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA78#5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk
The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

interest-bearing financial assets.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile

EZREER of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets at
the balance sheet date:
F5HE
The group
—%--% —g-%%
2011 2010
ERF= ERFI=
Effective Effective
interest Fr interest T
rate $000 rate $'000
EEfZemEE " Fixed rate financial assets:
-RITER ~ Deposits with banks 2.10% 71,143 0.89% 114,100

(i) BRE W
R=ZF——F=F=+—H st
MEZEBEH TH-—EE®T &
Htt 2 HEERETEZ2BR
T AEBZRBEEZENRREE
R #& 2 Bl E A #9711,0007T
(Z=—FF :1,141,000t) &
711,000t (ZZE—24% : 1,015,000

JT) °

(ii) ~ Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
$711,000 (2010: $1,141,000) and $711,000
(2010: $1,015,000) respectively.

MOISELLE
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25. EREREERRQAEE)

(0 FEEB (F)
(ii)  BHREEZHT (E)
FHEBRESMEEANRE ZBREE
B AR R EIE R AT REE L Z BN 2
B BRBRESHTBRANREERNG
ERERRLE YEAREHTE
REBAFELIREERELER
HEAABENERB2EMIA -
HRBEAKREREERABAEZF
BREFRMETEREEZRESR
Mm@ B AR 2 BRBRER
RREEHN 2 ERUARABRAF R
BEMEEZANEZHRBAZE
EZEEMT 2O HU=F—

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the group which expose the group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non derivative
instruments held by the group at the balance

sheet date, the impact on the group’s profit after

DEZE-EEET tax and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2010.

) EEER
AREPRZERARIEREEHE
BIEMEBEE - B R E A H UM
(BB 5 1 5 2L 3 RSS2 T e
) SHEZ BRSUE - B RERR S &
BTEL  SBMEARZ EHTERE
7 BT R R -

(d) Currency risk
The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros and

Sterling pounds.

MOISELLE
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(d)

E¥EE (E)

BMEBTERIEER 2EEERMS -
BRE TERRBUMNETRBEIN  IEHEE
RBEHLUB TRETFHE » HRBTE
Exf  EEERHEAGERSHR
SEMBERERRAR - BB IT R EHTT
BEZXEME HRZEXRZELTE
R BEEEARMAEZEEREBRK -

RUARBERDEER 2 KEEEM
5 RAMEREZEEEREERE
TREN HibX 5 KB UAREE
B AEAUBTHEZEBEREERR
Z= BEEERRMAEZEERRT
* o

FEEASEEARRAEEHRFERS
E-TFME -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A8 ¥ %5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars,
except for certain purchases from Europe. Given that
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management does not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such
United States dollars denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in Euros and Sterling
pounds, since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2010.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e R AR AR A W

W B Ak MY Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAE®57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. EREREERRQAEE)

d) BE¥ERGE)

(i) FrEREZEEEE
TRUASENEE A3 AEE
ERVDRERTENCHRIREER
BEMEAZZIERRELFAD
fre TRIAEEEEANEHKEQ
AMEHER (RERERHARE M
BRRMFREN—BD) MELED
EE e TROESEDRELEBZE
RABBBEEZI 2B - HER
EREIIMBRRAZHBRERAS
SEN2IEEMELEMNEZRL T
BEER-

B BRI LA B 5K

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

()

Trade and other payables 890

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s significant
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. The exposure arising from the borrowings
from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates ruling at the year
end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the group’s presentation

currency are excluded.

F5EE
The group
FrEEz N ERR
Exposure to foreign currencies
(Bl T3R)
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—2-%F
2010
B R
Sterling Sterling
Euros pounds Euros pounds
Tr T T T
$000 $’000 $'000 $000
1,218

1,649 2,687
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
d E¥mEb(E) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) BEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TREMMEEREEBERAEK The following table indicates the instantaneous

R zIEERNERZBHAE
B 2 BR A 1R 08 R R AR B2 R 2 BD By

s&,

e

ERFHMERSHERFT

Zoplitms CHRRETKRETR
ZENBBERARAZETLH
WEB EBESBRTE -

change in the group’s profits after tax and
retained profits that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the group entities have
significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar

against other currencies.

—B--F ZB-Bf

2011 2010
EX RHEKER REEH Ex KRH&ER REEH
/@Y B/ s/ BH/ (EY)/
(T &) 2m 21 (T%) 2 21

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/  (decrease) (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
in foreign increase increase in foreign increase  increase in
exchange  inprofits inretained  exchange in profits retained
rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits
r i r r
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B Euros 10% (74) (74) 10% (138) (138)
(10)% 74 74 (10)% 138 138
it 3 Sterling pounds 10% (102) (102) 10% (224) (224)
(10)% 102 102 (10)% 224 224
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25. EREREERQAEE)

d) BE¥ERGE)

(ii)  HBEEZHT (E)
ERFEVN 2O MEREAEES
EERELER DR E B ENES
VIEREFEAZERGBRBBIT 2
(SN2 K

e

BREINCBRIINEER ZEE
ERARENFEAEEMFRLR
FERAEASEHENERR S
BMITE BEEERBUEFETSR
BERZHEEBFELNNENRE
WARIA ° L3 AT N B IE S E BRI
MBLAR 2 BRERBELANEE
REINEEMELECEZR - ZED
WU B—FF 2 - BT -

(e) ARE
FiEeMIAYREEAR T ——FK
—E-ZF=ZA=+—HZAAEBTE
BEREZEZHEIE - B AR Z&6%
AHEEF  REREETERS o BERZ

ERF BEREZQAAELESE -

MOISELLE

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance

sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
group which expose the group to currency risk at
the balance sheet date, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the group which
are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into
the group’s presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2010.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2011 and 2010. Balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment
terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to

disclose their fair values.
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26. EIfE 26. COMMITMENTS
@ R-ZE——F=A=1+-—HIEERHK (@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2011
BERELBHEZERBTEREAENT : not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:
rxEE
The group
—E——& —B-T%
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
[EHEY Contracted for 150,467 9,489
REE——FZH+N\H  KEBERHKE On 18 February 2011, the group entered into a
EBYE(ZHMWEI6) ERENRIZ binding memorandum for sale and purchase to acquire
BEEESE MR=ZE—F=A=1+— a property in Hong Kong (see note 16) and the related
B ERGHHRELBB KRBT capital commitment outstanding at 31 March 2011 is
B AREIEH149,996,0007T © $149,996,000.
by R=ZZ2E——F=A=+—H REFTITHE (b) At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum lease
RELHEERREN 2 RERENK payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
FAHMT : payable as follows:
rEHE
The group
—E——fF “E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 104,242 99,172
—FREILFR After 1 year but within 5 years 93,615 104,274
197,857 203,446
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26. AIE (&)

(b)

(#&)

FEEREEHEERAE TN - 25H
HN—ROLRBP—ZEF > LARARE
ENERMAGRREY - BENREER
REFHAE  URRHESEE -

B EURE 2 REHEE NSRRI AEEE
REXBHRE THENERE -—TED
EEE RS AR 2 RS -

27. REERE

(a)

RZB-——F=ZA=+—8 ' XRAFAHE
T2EMBRARZBTHERMDAE
xR e

LR 1T R E 4 A48,190,0007T (=& —
ZF :67,690,000T) R=F——F=
BA=+—H E9#15,168,000t (=&
—ZF 1 6,774,0007T) EEA ©

BE-_Z——F=A=1+-—HLFEH
B ARG — B HERD - REEH
BRrARHEEMRRKE 2 ENEERR
BHEZMEREHE—RE -R=_T——
F=ZR=+—H BBEEE%2,546,000
T (=ZZ—=%F !2,687,0007T) °

RABUNEEBEHZEER - ZEXSL
FRAARAUERER - AR A TRERE
(BBETER)FEINR/ 2T A - BF
Rit#8 - MBERSA /A EBIUA R
AEE8ZERS - Bt - BEERILES]
FEREBERUDAETE -

MOISELLE

26. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted annually to

reflect market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of turnover for certain

leased properties.

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 March 2011, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries’
banking facilities were secured by corporate

guarantees provided by the company.

The above banking facilities, amounting to
$48,190,000 (2010: $67,690,000) were utilised to the
extent of $15,168,000 (2010: $6,774,000) at 31 March
2011.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the company
has also issued a single guarantee to a supplier against
obligations or sums payable for goods and services
supplied to a wholly owned subsidiary. At 31 March
2011, such obligations amounted to $2,546,000
(2010: $2,687,000).

These guarantees were issued by the company at nil
consideration. The transactions were not at arm’s
length, and it is not possible to measure reliably the
fair value of these transactions in accordance with
HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement: Financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly the guarantees have not been accounted

for as financial liabilities and measured at fair value.
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28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

HEBARZRS (@) Transactions with related companies
= —T-ZF
2011 2010
T T
$7000 $'000
REMEZHERWA Rental income from investment property 473 429
ExEacHEMX Rental expense for director’s quarters 996 930
PR %% & W A Service fee income 600 420

EHEBAR 2SR HEREER
BREEWATIRFT N T HEERE 2GR
EE -

TEEEAEHS

TEEBAEME (BEME7AKEX
T FARRANITES KM ESPTIKE Y
FTETHREHEEZHE)WNT :

Rental income, rental expenses and service fee income
with related companies were at terms mutually agreed

by both parties.

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as

follows:
—E——fF “E-FF
2011 2010
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
EHEERA Short-term employee benefits 13,645 13,397
BRRESREA Post-employment benefits 59 60
13,704 13,457
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LEBREF 29.
RACERBEHER B2R/AFEH 2B
Rl A THREFEEHE  URREBEUL
AREARZREMFEEHELERIAAE 2%

HEFTRR 2B BE - DF BRI TE2RE -

29.

WEABHRBRZAARSE 30.
R-BE——EXA+AA RAEBTZ—HEA
HNR Dz ESEHZE - LUK{E253,708,000
THE—EEEYE EHZLEZE—TFH
BER=-E——FRBt+LtAEXQARAZAE
FoBHZERRERR  HEMKRTR o L5
R-ZE——F=A=+—HALFEHHE K&
@2 1437,499,0007C 5] & LA B8 B ¥ % (2 B
Z16) cR=ZZFE——F=A=+—H ' TRN
MEREBE BB REFERNRESES
149,996,0007t (2B EE26(a)) °

30.

EERERERAL 31.
R-ZT——F=A=+—H EZRHLEHE
ZEES DA RELEZERA L BSuper Result
Consultants Limited ' —RARBHERZEFHS
M 2 AR o 20 B I 4R B A0 B 3

o 2 B A5 3R 3% o

31.

25 ¥ R fE 5t 32.
FFEE13(c) ~ 13(dR2SEEEBEYWER SR T
BffEzBRREERFESERBERZ 2ER - Hifh

AARAMERETEZRRMT ¢

32.

MOISELLE

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes, certain comparative figures have been

adjusted. Further details are disclosed in note 2.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 16 June 2011, the group entered into a binding
provisional agreement for sale and purchase for the
disposal of a property in Hong Kong at a consideration of
$253,708,000. Further details in relation to this disposal
are set out in the company’s announcement dated 17 June
2011. The disposal has not yet been completed up to the
date of this report. In addition, the group paid a deposit of
$37,499,000 for the acquisition of the property during the
year ended 31 March 2011 (see note 16). The outstanding
capital commitment for the acquisition at 31 March 2011
not provided for in the financial statements amounted
HK$149,996,000 (see note 26(a)).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2011, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 13(c), 13(d) and 25 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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32. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of fixed assets

The group assesses annually whether fixed assets have
any indication of impairment in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the assets would be
determined by reference to value in use and fair value
less cost to sell. Value in use is determined using the
discounted cash flow method. Due to inherent risk
associated with estimations in the timing and
magnitude of the future cash flows and fair value less
cost to sell, the estimated recoverable amount of the
assets may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by the

accuracy of the estimations.

Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of trade
debtors are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of
trade debtors is the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of
similar assets. The group uses all available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable

approximation of recoverable amount.
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32. BETHE R A (E)

(c)

(d)

(e)

MEFE

FEBTEHSEREFEDT - BIEEE
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32. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market trends,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of this

estimation.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.
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33. §EZ=-Z——S=-HA=+—HILEEEHE 33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
MBS RERZBE] - FEEARZREZ AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
A REES L EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
BEEZEUBHRERTEZEH  EEEHMAS Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
CEMZIEBFT RRBUR ZEMIEER - Z HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
ZE5] RERFBEARBE-Z——F= Interpretations and new standards which are not yet
B=+—-HUEFEMREN  BNREZSEY effective for the year ended 31 March 2011 and which
BRMERRM c ZSBIFUT 218:] » RERH have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
IEER R REEAEEA R ¢ include the following which may be relevant to the group:
RT3 EH
Ck: 35 Pl
S HEER

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BEBUBRELER) 2BE (ZF-FF) —E-ZEFtA-Hy=-F——5—HA—H
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
(BBEFER)E245% BRI [BHEAN L 25K FE ] —Z2-——%—-A—H
Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures 1 January 2011
(BBENER R 27N/ B HBEHEZE (=T ——FR&E) —E£-=%-H—H
HKAS 27 (revised 2011), Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
(BBEHERDFERFHLRERSELTRE (=B ——FKEHT) —Z2-=%-A—H
HKAS 28 (revised 2011), Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
(BBUBRELER)FE IR/ HHF LA —E2-=%-A—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2013
(BBUBRBRELER)F 10/ FE Y B#HE ] —Z2-=%-A—H
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013

MOISELLE
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33. B === ——G=A=1+—HLFECHE 33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
BN RE 2B ~ FEEARZREZ AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
AR E (A EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

(continued)
RT5BH
R EERZ
BT HBENR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BRUBREERE VKBS =] —E-=f-H—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
(BBUBREE)F 125/ At R 2 Em K E ) —E-=Z%—-A—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
(BBUBREER)FE 135/ AL EETE] —E-=f-H—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
AEEREFEERZSEITRERERRE The group is in the process of making an assessment of
28 BEARBERERRIZEMB what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
ZARBREETHAEEH 2 EEXER UHKMR the period of initial application, but is not yet in a position
MERERTE o to state whether these amendments, new standards and

interpretations would have a significant impact on the

group’s results of operations and financial position.
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Group Financial Summary

(LA 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2011 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.

E Results
BZ=HA=1t-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
E--F SE-TF SEIAF SERN\F SERLR
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Fr T T Tr T
$'000 $/000 $/000 $'000 $/000
(E50)
(Restated)
L Turnover 486,088 439,599 423,088 415,464 352,217
B R Profit from operations 87,648 58,006 27,902 57,959 85,459
& B AR Finance costs (1 3) (141) (266) (365)
FBIEEERRAIZER Share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity (179) (90) = = =
T REEYRIFZENZE  Net valuation gains/(losses)
ZhERE (F8) on land and buildings and
FH investment properties 5,000 5,349 (381) 4,649 2,975
BR % A% F Profit before taxation 92,468 63,262 27,380 62,342 88,069
FriEst Income tax (13,910) (8,867) (7,323) (10,043) (9,815)
ERBEF Profit for the year 78,558 54,395 20,057 52,299 78,254
BREA Earnings per share
HK Basic $0.287C $0.197T $0.07 78 $0.197C $0.287C
- Diluted $0.287T $0.197T $0.077T $0.187C $0.277C
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Group Financial Summary

(A% #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and liabilities
=A=+-H
As at 31 March
—E-—F SE-TF SEIAF SERNF SERLR
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
T T T T T
$'000 $’000 $/000 $/000 $/000
(E51)
(Restated)
BEEE Fixed assets 368,726 267,972 214,856 246,931 182,464
Hih&EE Other assets 50,096 13,255 14,226 20,519 13,558
EEFRSHEE Deferred tax assets 6,793 5,258 3,002 3,227 4,112
REBEEZRE Net current assets 216,495 215,629 167,265 157,609 159,387
BEERAE Total assets less current
EEAE liabilities 642,110 502,114 399,349 428,286 359,521
*RBEE Non-current liabilities (43,471) (24,898) (15,395) (19,204) (7,967)
598,639 477,216 383,954 409,082 351,554
fig A% Share capital 2,822 2,821 2,821 2,821 2,821
] Reserves 595,817 474,395 381,133 406,261 348,733

598,639 477,216 383,954 409,082 351,554

Kt . HRREERM(EBSERD 125872
ZEFT  REB——SFAKEERESTEE
LIRER (BB ST ER) F405R [ KREYF |
DNABBARZRENEZELEHRB -BE-F
—EFE-A-T-HLFEZHBELCHFLA
B-ZRBE-ZEENF=A=1+-RALFE
RBEFEZHE  AREMY K 2R
XBHRRZFE - R RES

MOISELLE

Note: In order to opt to early adopt the amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes, in 2011 the group changed its accounting policy
for recognising deferred tax on investment properties carried at
fair values under HKAS 40, Investment properties. Figures for the
year ended 31 March 2010 have been adjusted. Figures for year
ended 31 March 2009 and prior years have not been restated as
it would involve delay and expenses out of proportion to the
benefits of shareholders.
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